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CHAIRMAN’ S STATEMENT
ERE|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of HKE Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, “we” or “us”), | am delighted
to present our annual report of the Group for the year ended 30
June 2020 (“Review Year”).

For the Review Year, the revenue of the Group was
approximately S$7.6 million, gross profit was approximately
S$1.4 million and profit before taxation was approximately
S$0.2 million.

Despite having a challenging year, we remain optimistic
and positive for the upcoming year. Minister of Health, Mr.
Gan Kim Young, highlighted during the Ministry of Health
Committee of Supply Debate 2020, while tackling the novel
coronavirus outbreak, four more new polyclinics will be
opening over the next two years. Woodlands Health Campus is
scheduled to open progressively from 2022. Other upcoming
facilities include a new community hospital in Novena, and
the redevelopment of two national specialist centres, the new
National Cancer Centre and the National Skin Centre. These are
some examples of the plans and initiative put in place by the
Singapore government that could lead to an increase in medical
shielding construction work for the Group.

The Group continues to dedicate our effort to strive for
excellence in quality service providing to our customers. We
will continue to explore emerging building technologies in order
to strengthen our market position for the building construction
works in the medical and healthcare sectors in Singapore.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
all our shareholders, fellow members of the Board, the senior
management and staff of all levels for their dedication and effort
over the years. In addition, on behalf of the Board, | would also
like to express our most sincere thanks to all our customers,
suppliers and business partners for their continuous support.

Wu An Ming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 September 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFRRS W

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a Singapore-based contractor specialised in the
medical and healthcare sectors with expertise in performing
radiation shielding works. The Group mainly provides
integrated design and building services for hospitals and
clinics in Singapore. To a lesser extent, the Group is also
engaged in providing maintenance and other services, as well
as sales of tools and materials.

For the Review Year, the revenue of the Group was
approximately S$7.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately S$2.8 million, or 26.5%, as compared to
approximately S$10.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2019.

In Singapore, the transformation journey for healthcare is to
ensure that a good and sustainable system is in place. The
trend of increasing demand for health and aged care
services will continue as Singapore’s population ages. Higher
development expenditure in FY2020 is budgeted as higher
cashflows required for major projects such as Woodlands
Health Campus, Singapore General Hospital (SGH) Emergency
Medicine Building and SGH Elective Care Centre. New clean
rooms and radiology-related facilities are generally required in
the new healthcare facilities. The Directors are therefore of the
opinion that the Singapore Government’s initiative to increase
the medical-related facilities will, therefore, drive the demand
for medical-related radiation shielding works.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFWRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s principal operating activities are as follows: (i)
integrated design and building services; (ii) maintenance and

other services; and (iii) sales of tools and materials.

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue by business
segment:

AEBENEBZEERBOD « ()RE KRR
FREMRTS ¢ (iNEEREMRS © R(i)TA
KT FHHE o

PNRBIIRES D B

(Bt

|52 AR E s

For the year ended 30 June
BZ6H30BLFE

2020

2020

2019
20194

S$ S$

s T
(Audited)
(REZ)

F I3 7T
(Audited)
(REZX)

Revenue from: KEUTRIEZ W :

Integrated design and building services fre AT RIRERTE 9,972,641

Maintenance and other services HERE N E A AR A 377,751

Sales of tools and materials TARMBEE 52,900
10,403,292

The Group’s revenue for the Review Year was approximately
S3$7.6 million, representing a decrease of approximately
S$2.8 million, or 26.5%, as compared to approximately S$10.4
million for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Revenue deriving from integrated design and building
services was approximately S$7.2 million for the Review Year,
representing a decrease of approximately S$2.8 million, or
28.3%, as compared to approximately S$10.0 million for the
year ended 30 June 2019. The decrease was mainly due to
the Circuit Breaker measures being imposed by the Singapore
Government during the Circuit Breaker Period and majority of
the Group’s engineering projects were halted and resulted in a
significant slowdown in the progress of the Group’s engineering
works.

Revenue deriving from maintenance and other services
was approximately S$0.4 million for the Review Year (2019:
approximately S$0.4 million).

AEEREBEFEZRANR7T6AEN
METT - WEE2019F6 A30H IEFEH
10.4 A& IR TERAI2.8 B BHT IS T
5%26.5% °

REEFE @ REARTREERK 2 W
HET2EEIMNE T - REZE2019F6 A
0B IEFEX10.0E BFMFE T T¥A2.8
BEFIMKIT28.3% - Z NENTERA
= ¥ D03 AT 1 52 15 PR T 2R R BRER T PR ET
B MASEH KIS TREE BT
e BYAEBETIREEBEENE -

REEFE  GEREMREZKEZL B
0.4BBH M T (20194  #90.4 B EF 1
W) e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The Group’s gross profit was approximately S$1.4 million for
the Review Year (2019: approximately S$3.7 million), with
gross profit margin of approximately 18.9% (2019: 35.5%).
The decrease in the gross profit margin over the year ended
30 June 2019 was mainly attributable to the more competitive
pricing provided to customer to secure new projects during
the Review Year, as well as projects’ running costs that were
incurred during the Circuit Breaker Period which reduced
margins of the projects.

For the Review Year, the Group’s other income was
approximately S$0.6 million, or 7.6% of revenue for the Review
Year (2019: approximately S$0.5 million, or 4.7% of revenue
for the year ended 30 June 2019). The slight increase in other
income was mainly due to government support grants related to
novel coronavirus recognised for the Review Year.

For the Review Year, the Group’s administrative expenses
increased by approximately S$0.7 million or 46.3% to
approximately S$2.1 million, or 27.2% of revenue for the Review
Year, from approximately S$1.4 million, or 13.7% of revenue for
the year ended 30 June 2019. The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to an increase in compliance
charges incurred after the listing of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFWRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As a combined effect of the above, during the Review Year,
the Group recorded a profit of approximately S$0.1 million, as
compared to a profit of approximately S$2.3 million for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

The Board does not recommend a payment of a final dividend
for the Review Year (2019: Nil).

Total shareholders’ funds amounted to approximately S$28.5
million as at 30 June 2020, as compared to approximately
S$27.9 million as at 30 June 2019.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately $$29.7 million (2019: S$28.5 million) comprising
cash and cash equivalents of approximately S$25.2 million
(2019: S$22.5 million), and current liabilities of S$1.9 million
(2019: S$1.3 million). The Group’s current ratio (defined as
current assets divided by current liabilities) as at 30 June 2020
was 15.7 (2019: 22.4).

The Group’s gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of
interest-bearing liabilities to total assets, was at 0.2% as at 30
June 2020 (30 June 2019: 0.0%).

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately S$25.2 million (2019: S$22.5 million), most of
which were denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

B EEE ()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

The shares (the “Shares”) of the Company were successfully
listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 April 2018
(the “Listing Date”) and there has been no change in capital
structure of the Group since then.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a
healthy financial position throughout the Review Year. The
Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities, and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements all the
time.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no pledged bank deposit
(2019: Nil).

The Group transacts mainly in Singapore dollars, which is
the functional currency of the Group’s principal operating
subsidiaries. However, the Group has certain bank balances
and trade and other payable denominated in US$, HK$ and
S$ other than the functional currency of the respective group
companies, which exposed the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.

There were no significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies by the Group during the Review Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFWRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Use of Net
Proceeds from the Listing” in this report, the Group did not have
other future plans for material investments or capital assets as
at 30 June 2020.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group employed a total of 46 full-time
employees (including two executive Directors), as compared
to the 41 full-time employees as at 30 June 2019. Total staff
costs in the Review Year amounted to approximately S$2.8
million (2019: approximately S$2.7 million), which included
Directors’ emoluments, salaries, wages and other staff
benefits, contributions and retirement schemes. In order to
attract and retain valuable employees, the performance of
the Group’s employees are annually reviewed. The Group
provides adequate job training to the employees to equip
them with practical knowledge and skills. Apart from central
provident fund and job training programs, salaries increment
and discretionary bonuses may be awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance and
market situation. The emoluments of the Directors have been
reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, market
competitiveness, individual performance and achievement, and
approved by the Board.

B EEE ()
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group has not provided guarantee to
any customer (2019: Nil).

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no material capital
commitments (2019: Nil).

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting listing
expenses (including underwriting fee) and other expenses
arising from the Listing (“Net Proceeds”), were approximately
HK$74.0 million. The Group intends to apply the Net Proceeds
in accordance with the proposed applications set out in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 28 March 2018 (the
“Prospectus”). As stated in the Prospectus, the Company
intended to apply the Net Proceeds for: (i) acquisition
of additional property for workshop and office use; (ii)
strengthening our manpower by recruiting additional staff; (iii)
increasing our reserve for financing the issue of performance
guarantees in favour of our customers; (iv) financing the
acquisition of additional motor vehicles and additional
machinery; (v) increasing our marketing efforts; and (vi) use as
general working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THREFWRRS W

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Use of Net Proceeds from the Listing (Continued)

The Net Proceeds applied by the Group during the period from
the Listing Date up to 30 June 2020 are as follows:

Planned use of
Net Proceeds

Use of Net Proceeds:

ileEe

FEavERg: FETURR

HK$’000

Thn

Acquisition of additional property for workshop BEFTARBAZREN 34,000
and office use (Note 1) Bz wit1)

Recruiting additional staff H58%81 21500

Issue of performance guarantees HABHR 4,800

Acquisiton of additional motor vehicles BERNAERME 5,100

and machinery
Increasing our marketing efforts MATERENE 2,300
Use as general working capital Ble-keEde 6,300

Note 1:  As at 30 June 2020, the Directors were considering quotations from
a few property agents in deciding the best location and price for the
acquisition of the new property.

As at 30 June 2020, approximately HK$60 million remained
unutilised (the “Unutilised Net Proceeds”). The Unutilised
Net Proceeds was placed in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and Singapore and the Board expects that it will be utilised
in the same manner as disclosed in the Prospectus. Due
to the adverse impact of the outbreak of novel coronavirus
on worldwide economies and the three-phased approach
embarked by the Singapore Government to resume usual daily
activities after the implementation of Circuit Breaker measures,
the Board will continue to closely monitor the situation and
evaluate the impact on the timeline to utilise the Unutilised Net
Proceeds and will keep shareholders and potential investors of
the Company informed if there is any material change.

BERE(E)
EHAREREREAR(E)

N EMBHEZE2020F6 A0 81/ - &
EBECRATARBEEIIEFEE

Actual use of

Net Proceeds
from the Unutilised Expected date of
Listing Date to balance up to full utilisation of
30 June 2020 30 June 2020 Net Proceeds
BLmAHZ

20206A30A Bz E8A
WEBFE 2020568308 faREREL
FEERAR LRBRE BitEd

HK$°000 HK$'000

Tin TR
- 34000 on or before 30 June 2021
12021456 A0R T 2l
5,367 16,133 onor before 30 June 2021
12021456 A30R T 2l
144 4656 onor before 30 June 2021
12021456 A0R T 2l
850 4250 onor before 30 June 2021
R0 E6R0AK A
1,302 998 onor before 30 June 2021
12021456 A30R T 2l
6,300 - onor before 30 June 2021
12021456 A30R T 2l

Hit1: 202046 H30R  EEDEZEETWERRE

MRE - OREBERNDENREHLR R(E
1% o

R2020%F 6 A30H © #J60EE B LI X
BA(IABAMEHRIBEFE]) - KSHFT
BHREBEFHEETAEB R MNE TR
7 EECHEFABUAEABRERPEEN
HEARBA  BARFETRESNIER
HEREBEEETHFEE - RN K
RERBEIEEEBERA D ZBEN
FAMEBRETEE  EESBEERIE
AEBABRYFEHEARS PGS RIE
FHENBEEROTZE  UTEEREENE
AECREBANMARNRBRRREERESE -
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREREEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu An Ming (formerly known as Chen Xiaoer), aged 38,
is the chairman of the Board, chief executive officer of the
Company and an executive Director. He was appointed on 18
October 2019. He has extensive investment and management
experience in the fields of construction and real estate, financial
services and medical health. Mr. Wu invests and operates real
estate development, financial leasing and medical equipment
businesses in China and the United States. Mr. Wu holds
a bachelor’'s degree in Electronic Information Science and
Technology.

Mr. Koh Lee Huat, aged 50, is an executive Director. He
was appointed as a Director on 18 August 2017, and was
redesignated as an executive Director on 17 September
2017. Mr. Koh has been a director and a shareholder of Hwa
Koon Engineering Pte Ltd. since 25 January 2007. Mr. Koh is
responsible for the day to day operations and overall project
management, formulating corporate and business strategies
and making major operation decisions of the Group.

Mr. Koh has over 23 years of experience in the construction
industry specialising in radiation shielding works. Mr. Koh
gained technical work experience by starting as a technical
officer at the Singapore Institute of Standards and Industrial
Research (SISIR) in January 1995, eventually leading a team of
technicians on laboratory tools calibration and field testing. Mr.
Koh joined the Group in January 1996 as a site supervisor and
was promoted to project manager in January 2002.

Mr. Koh obtained a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering
from Ngee Ann Polytechnic of Singapore in August 1992. In
addition, Mr. Koh obtained certificates of completion of the
following courses: Introduction to Radiation Safety, conducted
by The National University of Singapore in March 1996;
Risk Management Course, conducted by Absolute Kinetics
Consultancy Pte Ltd in November 2006; Building Construction
Supervisors Safety Course, conducted by The Singapore
Contractors Association Ltd (SCAL) SCAL Academy in April
2008; and Work-at- Height Course for Supervisors, conducted
by Greensafe International Pte Ltd in November 2013.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 18 April 2018. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resource, key appointments and standard of conduct of the
Group.

Mr. Siu is a practicing solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong
and a China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC. Mr. Siu is currently a partner of
the law firm, Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum, Solicitors, which he first
joined as a solicitor in 2000 and has been continuously serving
there since then. His areas of practice include corporate
finance, capital markets, securities, mergers and acquisitions,
joint ventures and general commercial matters. Mr. Siu also
actively participates in charitable and social services in Hong
Kong. He is currently acting as a legal advisor for United
Hearts Youth Foundation as well as the school manager of The
Association of Directors & Former Directors of Pok Oi Hospital
Leung Sing Tak College. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1996.

Mr. Siu is currently an independent non-executive director of
each of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
897), Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1008) and Shuang Yun Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1706). He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Weiye Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1570) from March 2016 until
December 2018.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Prof. Pong Kam Keung, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He
is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 18 April
2018 and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
22 November 2019. He is primarily responsible for providing
independent judgment to bear on issuers of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resource, key appointments and
standard of conduct of the Group.

Prof. Pong was a member of the Disciplinary Tribunal of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries for 2015. Prof.
Pong was the chief prosecution officer of the Environment
Protection Department of the Government from July 2004 to
July 2013. He served as advisor to the Hong Kong Architecture
Centre from 2011 to 2013. He was also a member of the
Appeal Tribunal Panel of the Planning and Lands Branch of the
Development Bureau of the Government from February 2007 to
November 2012 and a member of the Advisory Committee on
Barrier Free Access of the Buildings Department which expired
in July 2003.

Prof. Pong obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Building Surveying from the Thames Polytechnic, United
Kingdom in June 1989, a degree of Master of Science in
Property Investment from the City University of London, United
Kingdom in December 1993, a degree of Bachelor of Laws
through a distance learning program from the University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom in September 1995, a degree
of Master of Science in Urban Planning from the University
of Hong Kong in December 2005 and a degree of Master
of Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in October 2008.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Prof. Pong has been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Construction Managers since August 2016, the Hong
Kong Institute of Facility Management since July 2000, the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors since November 2000, the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators since January 2001, the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyor since January 2006 and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since October
2012.

Prof. Pong was appointed as a non-executive director of Star
Properties Group (Cayman Islands) Limited (stock code:
1560) from March 2016 and subsequently re-designated as an
executive director from September 2018, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and an independent
non-executive director of Shuang Yun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1706) from October 2017, a company companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an executive
director of Sundart Holdings Limited (stock code: 1568)
from July 2015 to February 2018, was an independent non-
executive director of Central Holding Group Co. Ltd, previously
known as Wang Yang Holdings Limited (stock code: 1735)
from March 2018 to October 2019 and FSM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1721) from June 2018 to April 2020, companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Prof. Pong
has been an adjunct professor in the Division of Environment
and Sustainability of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology since December 2013.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREREEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred, aged 40, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He
is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee with effect from 18 April 2018. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resource, key appointments and standard of conduct of the
Group.

Mr. Cheung graduated from the University of Buckingham in
the United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science (Economics)
in February 2005. Mr. Cheung is a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Cheung joined Moores Rowland Mazars in
September 2005 as associate and was later transferred to
Mazars CPA Limited after its reorganisation in June 2007.
Mr. Cheung left Mazars CPA Limited in October 2007 as an
associate and joined Grant Thornton as senior accountant in
its China practice division until December 2008. Mr. Cheung
then worked for the Royal Bank of Canada Europe Limited as
accounts preparer in its CEES UK Department from March 2009
to January 2010. Mr. Cheung was employed by Asia Investment
Finance Group Limited (formerly known as “Harmonic Strait
Financial Holdings Limited” and “Rainbow Brothers Limited”)
(stock code: 33), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2010
to August 2010 as senior associate in corporate finance. Mr.
Cheung later joined Mega International Food Limited as its
financial controller in September 2010 and was appointed as
general manager of its fellow subsidiary, Poly Shining Limited,
and Mr. Cheung left the group in March 2013. From August
2013 to May 2018, Mr. Cheung worked at The Gate Worldwide
Limited, an international advertising and marketing agency,
with his initial position as a senior finance manager and was
promoted to a finance director in July 2015. Mr. Cheung joined
Publicis Media, a French multinational advertising and public
relations company, as finance director since July 2018. Mr.
Cheung was employed by Denuo Limited — Starcom Worldwide,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Publicis Groupe, the world’s third
largest communications group, as finance director from July
2018 to July 2019. He is currently a director of Sonic Corporate
Services Company.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFREREEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Cheung has been an independent non-executive director
of Affluent Foundation Holdings Limited (stock code: 1757),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since May 2018. He had been an independent
non-executive director of Chun Sing Engineering Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2277) (currently known as Huarong
Investment Stock Corporation Limited), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
December 2014 to June 2016 and he was an independent non-
executive director of LEAP Holdings Group Limited (stock code:
1499) (currently known as OKG Technology Holdings Limited),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from August 2015 to November 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Wing Hang, aged 43, graduated from The University
of Hull in January 2012 with a degree of Master of Business
Administration (MBA) and from City University of Hong Kong
in November 1999 with a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy. Mr. Chan is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has been chief financial officer and
company secretary of several listed companies. He has over
20 years of experience in accounting, corporate finance,
compliance, company secretarial, investor relations and initial
public offerings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and enhance its corporate value. The Company
adopted all the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange as its own code on corporate governance practices.

During the Review Year, the Company complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code with the exception of code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Since 18 October 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, the role of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are both performed by Mr. Wu An Ming.
In view of the experience of Mr. Wu in the fields of construction
and real estate, financial services and medical health, the
Board believes that it is more effective and efficient overall
business planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies of the Group and in the best interests of the
Group if Mr. Wu takes up the dual roles of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance and that there
are sufficient checks and balances in place by the operations
of the Board, which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals and adequate independent element in the
composition of the Board.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account
the circumstances of the Group as a whole. The Directors are
aware that the Company is expected to comply with the CG
Code. Any deviation from the CG Code should be carefully
considered and disclosed in the interim and annual report. Save
as disclosed above, the Company will continue to comply with
the CG Code to protect the best interests of the shareholders of
the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible
for the day to day operations, overseeing the overall business
development and project management, formulating corporate
and business strategies and making major operation decisions
of the Group as well as monitoring the internal control
policies and the risk management of the Group’s projects
and evaluating the financial performance of the Group. The
Board sets the overall policies, strategy and directions for the
Group with a view to developing its business and enhancing
the shareholders value. The Board meets regularly throughout
the year to formulate overall strategy, monitor business
development as well as the financial performance of the Group.
The Board has delegated certain duties and authorities to the
management for ensuring the Group’s projects delivered on-
time and within scope and budget, planning of space workflow
within medical facilities designated by the Group and managing
of financial reporting, investor relations, tax and treasury
matters of the Group. The Board may discharge its corporate
governance duties by establishment of board committees and
delegation of certain management and administration functions
to the management. During the Review Year, the Board
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls systems of the Group.

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wu An Ming (chairman and chief executive officer) and Mr.
Koh Lee Huat and three independent non-executive Directors
(the “INED”), namely Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon, Mr. Cheung Kwok
Yan Wilfred and Prof. Pong Kam Keung.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) BExe(F

The attendance records of the Directors for the regular Board, REEFE  ESHEALTTHESS
committees and general meetings of the Company for the €&  ZE8eexNRFEASHNHEHT
Review Year are as follows:

No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held

HEEERY ETEERR

Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
E= EEg BHZRE® FMZEREE REZEE RRBAFAE

Executive Directors

HTES
Mr. Wu An Ming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(Note 1) 3/4 N/A N/A 1 1/1
WEBAE(FEETHAEH) (1) 3/4 TEm TEHA 11 11
Mr. Koh Lee Huat 7 N/A i N/A 11
TR 717 TER 11 il 11
Mr. Ryan Ong Wei Liang (Note 2) 313 N/A N/A i N/A
TRERE(H22) 313 TER TEm i TEm
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Mr. Ang Kong Meng (Note 3) 313 11 N/A N/A N/A
MR (Hi23) 33 11 TEA TER TEm
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFGTES
Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon 7 2/2 i N/A 11
BYERE 77 212 17 T 7
Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred 717 2/2 N/A 2/2 il
REIC LA 717 2/2 TNER 2[2 11
Prof. Pong Kam Keung (Note 4) 6/7 1 i 2[2 11
ESREHR (Hit4) 6/7 1 7 212 17

Notes: Hyat

1. Appointed on 18 October 2019. 1. R2019F10A18BEZ(T -

2. Resigned on 18 October 2019. 2. 72019510 18 A BHT °

3. Retired on 22 November 2019. 3. H2019F 11 A22H R -

4. Appointed as a member of Audit Committee on 22 November 2019. 4. R2019F 11 F22REZEAEZREELNE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEREARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

In compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company appointed
INEDs with at least one of them having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The INEDs, together with the executive directors,
ensure that the Board prepares its financial and other
mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant
standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the INEDs and believes that their
independence is in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The term of appointment pursuant to the letters of
appointment of Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon, Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan
Wilfred and Prof. Pong Kam Keung is for a period of one year
till April 2020 and thereafter shall continue year to year. The
non-executive directors are subject to the requirement that
one-third of all the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting pursuant to the amended and
restated articles of association (“Articles of Association”) of the
Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the Review Year, according to the records provided
by the Directors, the participation by each Director in the
continuous professional development (“CPD”) was recorded as
follows:

The executive directors, Mr. Wu An Ming and Mr. Koh Lee Huat;
and the INED, Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred participated in
CPD activities by ways of reading materials covering topics
including review of corporate governance code and related
Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

The INED, Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon, participated in CPD activities
by ways of reading materials covering topics including review
of corporate governance code and related Listing Rules.

The INED, Prof. Pong Kam Keung, participated in CPD
activities by ways of attending training/seminars and/or reading
articles/journals covering topics including review of corporate
governance code and related Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the codes of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors and
by relevant employees of the Company. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiries by the Company, that
they fully complied with the Model Code during the Review
Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Mr. Wu An Ming, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Siu Man
Ho Simon and Prof. Pong Kam Keung. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
and on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration and on the remuneration
of non-executive directors. The Directors are remunerated with
reference to their respective duties and responsibility with the
Company, the Company’s performance, other companies in
the industry in which the Group operates and current market
practice. The Remuneration Committee adopted the model
under the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

During the Review Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure; the
remuneration packages of the Directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group; all disclosure statements
in relation to the Remuneration Committee in the annual report
and interim report of the Company; and the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of emoluments of the Directors for the year are disclosed
in Note 11 to the Financial Statements and the retirement
benefit schemes are disclosed in Note 26 to the Financial
Statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Mr. Wu An Ming, and two INEDs, namely Prof. Pong
Kam Keung and Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Prof. Pong Kam Keung.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, considering
inter alia the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as
a whole, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors. When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider a variety of factors
including reputation for integrity; accomplishment, experience
and reputation in the relevant industry and other relevant
sectors; commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business; diversity in all
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge; the ability to assist and
support management and make significant contributions
to the Company’s success; compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules for the appointment of an INED.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall invite
nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may also nominate candidates for its consideration.
In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual and
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval. In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.

Each of executive director entered into service agreement
for their appointment with the Company for a term of three
years. Each of INEDs entered into letter of appointment for
his appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year and thereafter shall continue year to year. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

According to Article 108(a)-(b) of the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary
to obtain the number required) any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election. Any Director who has
not been subject to retirement by rotation in the three years
preceding the annual general meeting shall retire by rotation at
such annual general meeting. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those who have been longest in office since their last
re-election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot.

According to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under this Article
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

During the Review Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, all disclosure
statements in relation to the Nomination Committee in the
annual report and interim report of the Company and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee; assessed the
independence of INEDs; and adoption of nomination policy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheung Kwok
Yan Wilfred, Prof. Pong Kam Keung and Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan
Wilfred.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the risk
management and internal control systems, the Group’s financial
and accounting policies and practices and the financial
statements and reports of the Company; approve the terms
of engagement of the auditor; and discuss the scope of audit
work with the auditor. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and etc.

During the Review Year, the Audit Committee of the Company
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group with the management and the Company’s
auditor; discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the audited financial statements
and unaudited interim financial statements; reviewed the
compliance with the CG Code, the disclosure in the corporate
governance report, the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, internal control systems and procedures
and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; and
reviewed and discussed the audit plan of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of the financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a going
concern basis and which are in compliance with the relevant
accounting standard and principles, applicable laws and
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Group’s financial statements
for the Review Year is set out in the section “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this report. During the Review Year,
remuneration paid and payable to the auditor of the Group are
approximately S$240,000 for annual audit fee and nil for non-
audit services.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Board will review such
objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and the progress made towards achieving those objectives.
The Company will also take into consideration its own
specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company is aiming to develop a good risk management
and internal control system for managing operational and
financial risks. The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for maintaining sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems in order to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Company against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of
proper books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations.

BB e EL 3 A

N RIAZ ERAD h B AN B 5N [0 R F S B
BREROBRETHBAHARNRE (B2
ZERTIRE | — 51 - REBEFER - EF K
JE 1 7N 2 [ A% B #Y) 37 B 49 240,000 %7 N3
TATFEZHEER MIEBRBUAES

ﬁo

EEEHRESTLBE

ARRAHEMEZTEXE L TEERR (K
R ETHAERNMERESTENES
TUER TR A BRI E E R AL -

REBR  ARRBEBEEZERNEZ &
BETRNMER - Fik - XERHEEH
B Ek - BELR - R AELRS
FR - SREHEFEKEZ L -EF
SRR ZERE  UWERELEEMK
MEEEHZFRENER - ARRINE
TEFEXNERBANB T TRE B
AEHBEFR -

[ e T % g R 42

AEEITESNE - EARFHOREREERA
MEHERAEELLENMBRR - EF
SHRREAETHETAREE LA BEH
ERRE2AMARERREZLERAR
AEETEEARAEREBR T ERNE
B ERZARERHAIEMBEENNKE
BN O e M RERE TR AR A BOER -

HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED | —Z=-ZFFF3f

29



30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal control is reviewed on an annual basis by an engaged
external internal control reviewer that works closely with
management team of the Company in improving any material
deficiency in control. The management of the Company reviews
and assesses the risk management and internal control of the
Company on a regular basis by meeting regularly to discuss
possible improvements to any internal control process,
whenever it is necessary, and to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and resolve internal control defects.
Any material non-compliance or failures in internal controls
and recommendation for its improvements will be reported to
the Audit Committee. The management of the Company also
considers the findings and recommendations from the external
auditors and the internal control reviewer to ensure continuous
improvements in the internal control processes. The Directors,
senior management and staff of the Company work very closely
together. Directors and senior management will be able to
monitor closely on the effectiveness of the internal controls.
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The procedures and internal controls of the Company for
handling and dissemination of inside information include
conducting the affairs of the Company with close regard to the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information published by
Securities and Futures Commission and the Listing Rules and
reminding the Directors and employees of the Group regularly
about due compliance with all polices regarding inside
information.

During the Review Year, risk management and internal
control systems have been reviewed by an engaged external
professional adviser with the management of the Company
and the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and considered
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The Company does not have an internal audit function. The
Company is currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function in light of the Group’s
simple corporate and operation structure and being active
in only one geographical location. Review on the need for an
internal audit function will be performed from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Wing Hang, the company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”), is employed on a full time basis
and has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the Review Year. The Company Secretary
coordinates and supplies of information to the Directors. The
Company Secretary ensures that board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with for all board
meetings. Please refer to the section headed “Biography of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for his
biographical information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

The Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. The written
requisition should be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, specifying the Shareholders’ contact details and
the resolution intended to be put forward at general meeting.

For including a resolution to propose a person for election as
a Director at general meeting, the Shareholders are requested
to follow the Articles of Association. A notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or at the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company. The period
for lodgment of the notices required under the Article of
Association will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date
of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which such notices to the Company may be given will be
at least seven days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules. The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are posted on the Company’s
website.

The Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong. The Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is publicly
available. The Shareholders and the investment community may
also make enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 2004, 20/F, K11 Atelier, 18 Salisbury Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

This objective of the Shareholders’ communication is to ensure
that the Shareholders, both individual and institutional, and
the investment community at large, are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to transparent, accurate, balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable
the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner,
and to allow the Shareholders and the investment community to
engage actively with the Company.

Information shall be communicated to the Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened as well as
by making available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange and all its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company website and the Stock
Exchange website. All press releases, newsletters and etc.
issued by the Group will be made available on the Company
website (www.hwakoon.com) which provides an effective
communication platform to the public and the shareholders of
the Company.

During the Review Year, there had been no significant change
in the Company's constitutional documents.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
Review Year (“Financial Statements”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 18 August 2017. The Company completed
the corporate reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 2
March 2018 in preparation for the Listing, pursuant to which
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The Shares were listed on
the Stock Exchange on 18 April 2018 by way of share offer.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
of the Company is located at Unit 2004, 20/F, K11 Atelier, 18
Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its operating subsidiary, Hwa Koon
Engineering Pte Ltd, are provision of integrated design and
building services in the medical and healthcare sectors with
expertise in performing radiation shielding works. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note 31
to the Financial Statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
Review Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRE

RESULTS/BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the Review Year are set out in the
section headed “Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income” on page 99 in this annual report.

A review of the business of the Group for the Review Year,
which includes a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis using financial key
performance indicators of the Group’s business, particulars
of important events affecting the Group, an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, and discussion
on the Company’s environmental policies and performance
and the relationships with its stakeholders, can be found in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual
report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Review Year, as far as the Directors are aware, the
Company did not have any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that is material or systemic in nature.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Review Year are set out in Note 13 to the
Financial Statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Review
Year are set out in Note 31 to the Financial Statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 30 June 2020
was 800,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 per
share.

Details of movements during the Review Year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 23 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Review Year are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity” on page 102 in this annual report.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s aggregate amount of reserves

available for distribution was approximately S$10.3 million
(2019: approximately S$10.3 million).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wu An Ming (formerly known as Chen Xiaoer)
(Appointed on 18 October 2019)

Mr. Koh Lee Huat

Mr. Ryan Ong Wei Liang (resigned on 18 October 2019)

Non-executive director:
Mr. Ang Kong Meng (retired on 22 November 2019)
Independent Non-executive directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred
Mr. Siu Man Ho Simon
Prof. Pong Kam Keung

In accordance with article 108 (a)-(b) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred and Prof. Pong
Kam Keung will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all independent non- executive Directors
to be independent.

Biographical information of the directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to
19 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into an letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
one year commencing from the Listing Date and thereafter shall
continue year to year, unless terminated by not less than one
month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), has a
service agreement or letter of appointment with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which sets forth
the Company’s approach when considering the payment
of dividends and to allow shareholders of the Company to
participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate
reserves for the future growth of the Company and its
subsidiaries and provided that the Group records profits and
that the declaration and payment of dividends does not affect
the normal operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the general financial condition of the Group; the capital
and debt level of the Group; future cash requirements and
availability for business operations, business strategies and
future development needs; any restrictions on payment of
dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders; the
general market conditions; and any other factors that the Board
deems appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and any other applicable laws, rule and regulations and the
Articles of Association. The dividend policy will be reviewed by
the Board from time to time and there can be no assurance that
a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Review Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the Shares

Name of director Nature of interest

EEpR

Mr. Wu An Ming (“Mr. Wu”)

(Note 1)
M2 E(THEED (HiF1) REEEEREZR
Note:

1. 600,000,000 Shares are held by Eagle Fortitude Limited (“Eagle
Fortitude”) which is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Eagle
Fortitude.

Interest in a controlled corporation
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A MBS AR T ¢

(a) BOHEFE

Percentage
of issued
share capital
HE BT
BREBD L

Number of
Shares held

Fris R4 2 B

600,000,000 75%

Mt -

1. 600,000,000 A% f% 7 B Eagle Fortitude
Limited ([ Eagle Fortitude J) # & -+
Eagle Fortitude BEASE 2 BHER - BRI
FHRHEBRD - AL EWR AR Eagle
Fortitude¥s B #IR (D P HEE e ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(b) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

EERRSITHRABRAR TR

EENRD - BERO R EERVEDS

RKRRE(E)

(b) REBSEEROHERE

Percentage

of interest in

Name of Number of associated

Name of director associated corporation Nature of interest shares held corporation

RAEBEE

EEpE B EEER EmME FrERGEE EmES

Mr. Wu (Note 1) Eagle Fortitude Beneficial owner 1 100%
RS (KTaET) Eagle Fortitude BalEE A

Note: Hiat -

1. The Company is owned as to 75% by Eagle Fortitude. Eagle
Fortitude is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in register referred to therein, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2020, the following persons or entities who had
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

BEREE LB

REEME

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Eagle Fortitude
Eagle Fortitude

Mr. Wu (Note 1)

A E(HET) B IEER A

Note:

1. Eagle Fortitude is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, the Company
had not been notified by any persons or entities who had or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

Held by a controlled corporation

FERRRAQFARG RAEBRD A
BmRKRE

R202066 A30H L TALTHEERA
NARMDRABEROFPEE IR BNE
ERERIBEZEHF R ERAIEXVEE2RE
35 B A M AN A ) R B 2 P i BB AR w500
B HREE S KB EKH] F 336K AL %
EARRMEENECMAORRIARNT ¢

REBRANER
Percentage
Number of of issued
Shares held share capital
EHEBT
FrEERG#E RAEBDL
600,000,000 75%
600,000,000 75%
liofz
1. Eagle Fortitude A%k £ 2 &R °
B EXPATIREEE SN - 202056 H30R -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Review Year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the contracts relating to the Reorganisation of the
Group in relation to the Listing and save for the related party
transactions disclosed in Note 27 to the Financial Statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or its holding company
was a party and in which a director or an entity connected
with a director had a material interests directly or indirectly
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Review
Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, no contract of significance
to which the Company, its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party, and in which the controlling
shareholders’ of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the Review Year.

CONNECTED/RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Year, there were no connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken

in the normal course of business are set out in the Note 27 to the
Financial Statements.
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COMPETING INTEREST

The controlling shareholders, the Directors and their respective
close associates confirm that each of them does not have any
interest in a business apart from the Group’s business which
competed or was likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the Group’s business during the Review Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, except such
(if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The then sole shareholder of the Company conditionally
approved and adopted a share option scheme on 15 March
2018 (the “Scheme”) and shall be valid until 15 March 2028.
Pursuant to the Scheme, certain eligible participants including,
among others, the Directors and employees of the Group may
be granted options to subscribe for Shares. The purpose of
the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to employees
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources. A summary of the principal terms of the share option
scheme is set out in the paragraph headed “Other Information
— 1. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
The terms of the Scheme are in accordance with the provisions
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No share option has been
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed since the adoption of
the Scheme and there was no share option outstanding as at 30
June 2020.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted under the Scheme is 10%
(i.e. 80,000,000 Shares) of the Shares in issue as at the Listing
Date. Upon acceptance of an offer for grant of option(s) under
the Scheme, the participant shall pay HK$1.00 to our Company
by way of consideration for the grant, which option(s) will be
offered for acceptance for a period of 21 days from the date of
grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Unless approved by Shareholders in a general meeting, the
amount of Shares which can be awarded to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director or their
respective associates in the Scheme in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant for any particular
aforementioned person in aggregate, is at maximum 0.1% of
the Shares in issue and having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant, of a
maximum of HK$5.0 million.

The subscription price for the Shares in respect of any
particular option under the Scheme shall be such price as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of the grant of the relevant option but in any case the relevant
subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of the grant of the relevant
option, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the relevant option; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Except for the Scheme disclosed above, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Review Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Review Year, the aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
in aggregate accounted for approximately 8.6% and 26.6%
(2019: approximately 7.9% and 26.5%) respectively of the
Group’s total purchases. Revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 51.3% and 77.3% (2019:
approximately 28.3% and 79.4%) respectively of the Group’s
total revenue for the Review Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers
during the Review Year.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group has maintained good relationship with our
employees. The Group offers to our employees salary, bonuses
and other allowances. In general, the Group determines
employee salaries based on each employee’s qualifications,
position and seniority. The Group has designed an annual
review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which forms the basis of our decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

The Group has established stable business relationships with
our major customers. The Directors consider that our long-term
business relationships with our major customers and suppliers
would further enhance our market recognition and enable us to
attract more potential business opportunities.

A majority of the Group’s five largest customers have long-
standing business relationship with the Group for a period
ranging from approximately 1 to 12 years and the Group will
therefore endeavor to accommodate their demands for the
Group’s services to the extent its resources allow in order to
capture more opportunities for larger scale projects in the
future.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS (Continued)

The Group maintains an internal list of approved suppliers. We
carefully evaluate the performance of our suppliers and select
them based on a number of factors such as pricing, quality
of material or equipment provided, timeliness of delivery and
ability to comply with our requirements and specifications.
The Group will review and update our internal list of approved
suppliers according to our assessment of their performance on
an ongoing basis.

The Group maintains an internal list of approved
subcontractors. We carefully evaluate the performance of
our subcontractors and select subcontractors based on their
experience relevant to the particular project as well as their
availability and fee quotations. The Group will review and
update our internal approved list of subcontractors according
to our assessment of their performance on an ongoing basis.

Subject to the Group’s capacity, resource level, cost
effectiveness, complexity of the projects and customers’
requirements, the Group may subcontract certain building
works such as (i) mechanical and electrical works relating to
air conditioning and mechanical ventilation systems, chiller
systems, and plumbing and sanitary systems; and (ii) fitting-
out works involving carpentry works and other finishing works
relating to ceilings, floors and walls to other subcontractors
in a project. The Group is accountable to customers for the
works performed in a project, including those carried out by our
subcontractors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Review Year, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group during the Review Year are set out
in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 20 to 33 in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Review Year (2019: nil).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed, together with the
management and external auditor, the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group and the Financial
Statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements have been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the AGM. There has been no change in auditor
since the Listing Date.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
minimum public float as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Wu An Ming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

29 September 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -EREARE

INTRODUCTION

HKE Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as “HKE”, the
“Company”, together with our subsidiaries referred to as the
“Group” or “We”) are glad to release this year's Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) report. The fundamental
purpose of our survival is to facilitate the construction of
medical protection projects that protect the health of the
people. It is important for our stakeholders (including but not
limited to our customers, employees and shareholders) to
know our sustainability vision, our work towards it and our work
results, and that is why we expanded the scope of disclosure
this year.

The core businesses of the Group are engaged in the provision
of integrated design and building services in contract-based for
hospitals and clinics. The Group is specialised in the medical
and healthcare sectors with expertise in performing radiation
equipment installation and ration shielding works. The Group
also provides subcontracting services to other contractors in
medical-related construction projects.

Our earth is facing a huge threat that cannot be ignored. We
hope to have a positive impact on the sustainability of the world.
We are honoured to be able to create a better future for our next
generations.

REPORTING SCOPE

Unless stated otherwise, this report mainly covers the Group’s
major operating activities under direct management control
which represents the Group’s major source of revenue,
including its provision of integrated design and building
services for hospitals and clinics.

The Group will continue to assess the major ESG aspects
of different businesses to determine whether it needs to be
included in the ESG reporting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR HEREIRS

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set
out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “ESG Reporting Guide”).

Information relating to the corporate governance practices
of the Group has been set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and
measures being taken during the year ended 30 June 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views relating to
its businesses and ESG issues. In order to understand and
address stakeholders’ concerns, the Group communicates
with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to
employees, investors, customers, suppliers, government
bodies and communities via through different channels such
as conferences, electronic platforms and public events. In
formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the
Group takes into account the stakeholders’ expectations and
strives to improve its performance through mutual cooperation
with the stakeholders, resulting in creating greater value for the
community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR HEREIRS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

The management and employees who are responsible for
the key functions of the Group have participated in preparing
this report, assisted the Group in reviewing its operation,
identifying key ESG issues and assessing the importance of
these issues to our businesses and stakeholders. We have
compiled a questionnaire in reference to the identified material
environmental, social and governance issues to collect the
information from relevant departments and business units of the
Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that
appropriate and effective management policies and internal
control systems for environmental, social and governance
issues were in place and confirmed the information disclosed in
the Report meets the ESG Reporting Guide.

Comments and suggestions are welcome from our
stakeholders. You may provide comments on ESG report or
towards our performance in respect of sustainable development
via e-mail to ir@hwakoon.com.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Sustainability constitutes a significant part of our risk
management process. Considering environmental factors,
like the downside of emissions from our production, is more
than just a compliance issue, but a matter of maintaining the
success, or even the survival of our business.

During the Reporting Period, our management did not identify
any material non-compliance of relevant environmental
laws and regulations. The relevant environmental laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to the Environmental
Public Health Act (Chapter 95 of Singapore) and the
Environmental Protection and Management Act (Chapter 94A of
Singapore).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -EREARE

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Air Emissions

During the process of provision of building service, we emit air
pollutants including nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), Sulphur oxides

(“S0,”) and Particulate Matter (*PM”) due to use of diesel
fuelled mobile vehicles.

Air Emission

RER HERK
PM g8k
SO, B&ity
NO, @&its
0 50 100

W 2019/2020

2019/20
FE

Type of Emissions

ERITRYER

BRIR(E)

B (&)

BESR

R HEERBIBED - BRER TIHER
SR EBER  RARENZERSRYE

FEREmINO D) - HE/{LWm([SO K
BFAL([PM]) -
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W 2018/2019

2018/19
FE

Nitrogen oxides (NO )
FE(LM(NO,)

Sulphur oxides (SO )
mE (SO,
Particulate matter (PM)
$2)F FERL(PM)

157.08 kg
0.27 kg

15.05 kg
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -EREARE

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

We also produce small amount of dust, volatile organic
compounds (“VOCs”), smokes, obnoxious gases and other
air-borne particulates during participating in our client’s
projects. However, those emissions are insignificant, irregular
and it is unable to collect relevant figures at reasonable cost.
Despite the insignificancy, we established measures, such
as proper ventilation on site, exhaust fan with HEPA filter, to
keep the emission within the statutory standard and within
tolerable limits to the affected persons. We have formulated
a series of policies related to environmental management,
include establishing an environmental management system
that complies with ISO14001 to regulate our daily operations;
establishing special departments to coordinate and implement
environmental protection measures and targets; establishing
measures on noise, air pollutants, waste, energy and carbon
emissions, to ensure that all business activities strictly comply
with Singapore’s environmental protection laws and regulations.
Measures to mitigate the air pollution are summarized as
following:

Adhesive, coating, cleaners and solvents produces VOCs and
different kinds of air pollutants, and therefore we use alternative
adhesive or formulations such as hot melts, hot seal, aqueous-
based, or polyvinyl acetate; switch to less toxic coating types
such as high-solids nitrocellulose, aqueous-based, ultraviolet
(“UV”) cured, or polyester/polyurethane; Use aqueous-based
cleaners which have lower toxic air pollutant and VOCs content;
and Use alternative stripping materials that contain N-methyl
pyrrolidone or gamma-butyrolactone which are water-soluble,
biodegradable solvents.
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B -EREARE

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Paint application often over the necessary amount, producing
waste of paint and emit air pollutant. We replace spray
painting by hand painting to reduce air pollutant emissions
from overspraying. We also use a coating method that does
not require spraying such as vacuum coating, dip coating, roll
coating, flow coating, dry coating, and curtain coating.

Emission sometimes comes unnecessarily, such as from
spilling, leaking, vaporization, evaporation, etc. We cover
all containers securely to reduce the chance of spills when
transferring materials; Use funnels or pumps to avoid spills
when dispensing materials; Keep glue containers covered to
reduce toxic vapors; Minimise evaporative emissions by using
enclosed or mechanical parts washing and gun washing; and
Store rags and towels in closed containers.

Different procedures could bring more environmentally friendly
results. We control the use of solvents by using mechanical
cleaning such as scraping or wiping in advance, cleaning
spray guns in a gun washer, using water-based detergents or
acetone if possible, reducing unnecessary equipment cleaning,
arranging light-color to dark-color sequence and minimising the
number of color changes by better scheduling.

We control overspray by adopt more efficient paint application
equipment to reduce overspray such as switching to a high
volume, low-pressure spray (“HVLP”), airless spray, air-
assisted airless spray, or electrostatic spray guns.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -ERELEE

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The consumption of electricity at the office, diesel consumption
for the vehicles and the construction waste to landfill are the

largest sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group. Our
GHG emission during the Reporting Period is shown as below:
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Note 1) 2019/20 2018/19

BERBHERMET) FE

FE

Scope 1 - Direct Emissions 46.22

BENT-EERHFR

Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions 13.03

FE2— LR BN

Total 59.25

et
Intensity (per employee) (Note 2)
mE(BHEE)(HH2)

1.45

Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
WAL E S
Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
W — iR E 2
Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
WAL EE
Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
WE—S(LIRE &

Notes:

1. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was
in reference to, including but not limited to, the reporting requirements
of the “GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development, HKEX — KPIs: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs and the Singapore Energy Statistic 2019 of Energy
Market Authority of Singapore.

2. As at 30 June 2020, the number of full-time employees of the Group was

46 (2019: 41). This number would also be used for calculating other
intensity data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR HEREIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

At the same time when our business is growing and strategically
expanding, it also increase our carbon footprint. We must
optimize effectively manage our operations and purchase low-
carbon products to prevent increasing our GHG emissions.
We have adopted the following measures to mitigate the direct
GHG emission from diesel consumption in our operations:

° Optimise operational procedure to increase the loading
rate and reduce the idling rate of vehicles;

o Perform vehicle and equipment maintenance on a regular
basis to prevent inefficient fuel consumption or abnormal
operations; and

° Phase out substandard vehicles, purchase regular diesel
for vehicles, and conduct inspection every year to ensure
that relevant emission standards are met.

Greenhouse gases generated indirectly from electricity
consumption are also our main source of carbon emissions. We
have taken the measures described in the “Energy Efficiency”
section to reduce energy consumption and thereby minimize
our carbon footprint. We believe that through these measures
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, coupled with enhancing
employees' awareness of greenhouse gas emissions, will
alleviate our carbon emissions.

We do not consume significant amounts of water through our
business activities, and therefore our business activities did not
generate material portion of discharges into water. The majority
of the water supply and discharge facilities are provided and
managed by property management company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management

The Group adheres to the waste management principle and
strives to properly manage and dispose wastes produced by
our business activities. We segregated all waste by type and
classify them into non-hazardous waste, hazardous waste and
recyclable/reusable.

Compliance to relevant laws and regulations

The Group maintains high standard in waste reduction.
Management Representative (“MR”) is responsible to monitor
and ensure all handling of waste is carried out in accordance
with the statutory requirements, including educates our
employees the significance of sustainable development and
provides relevant support in order to enhance their skills and
knowledge in sustainable development.

Non-hazardous waste

Construction wastes, mainly building debris, and paper waste
are our major source of non-hazardous waste. We usually
engage third party waste handling companies, which possess
general waste collector’s license, to ensure proper disposal
of construction wastes. Our non-hazardous waste discharge
volume during the Reporting Period is shown as below:

BRIR(E)
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RE4E BEWIR
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

2019/20
3

Types of Wastes

BERYER

Paper

REAR

Construction waste

BN IR

Other domestic waste (Note 1)
Hph A TGN R (Kat1)

Total

#Et

Intensity (per employee) (Note 2)
mE(8%EE)(Mit2)

Notes:

1. The weight of other domestic waste were estimated figures by considering
the estimated weight per day multiplied by the number of business day.

2. As at 30 June 2020, the number of full-time employees of the Group was
46 (2019: 41). This number would also be used for calculating other
intensity data.

We follow the code of practice for hazardous waste
management published by the Singapore Standard Council and
will engage third party licensed toxic industrial waste collector
to dispose of building debris containing lead materials. In
relation to dismantled medical equipment and accessories, if it
is requested by our customers, we would arrange to dispose of
the used medical equipment and provide disposal certificate to
our customer as evidence of disposal.

During the Reporting Period, we did not assist any client to
dispose building debris containing lead materials or used
medical equipment. Therefore, we did not generate significant
hazardous waste discharge and the discharge of used medical
equipment during the Reporting Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

We reduce use of paper and paper waste by bring up
employee’s awareness on reusing and recycling. We
established paper saving policies which include requesting our
staff to prints only when necessary, uses double-sided printing
of paper as a habit, make sure all documents are right before
printing and make good use of the blank side of wasted paper.
We also promote paperless working environment that e-mail
and e-document and e-presentation handout are always higher
preferable than paper form.

We are committed to protecting the environment by introducing
resource efficiency and eco-friendly measures. In support
of this commitment, we identify and control environmental
impacts and continuously improve our performance and has
established relevant policies and procedures in governing the
efficient use of resources. Our management team work closely
with employees to execute our policies and practices, which
are made tangible through solid goals and metrics in achieving
higher energy efficiency and reducing the unnecessary use of
materials.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Consumption

Our energy use, mainly comprising electricity and non-
renewable fuel (mainly diesel) in mobile vehicles, is also the
primary driver of our Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions. Our
total energy use decreased slightly from 198,365 kWh in
2018/2019 to 190,412 kWh in 2019/20. We continue to adopting
energy conservation measures, set a role model for corporate
social responsibility. More importantly, we strives in enhance
employees’ energy conservation awareness in terms of less
electricity consumption in workplace and cost reduction in long
run. The Group’s consumption in diesel and electricity were:

2019/2020

RE(E)
ERER (&)
FEFUH 7€

BPNERFERTEAREENLRERHTN
JERBAME (TER2L4EM) 2R M
HEIN2PEAERENBNEIERE -
T MR AR F A 2 #2018/2019F E
79 198,365 T [ fF B B &= 2019/20 FF € #Y
190,412 F B BF B PIAG B R ENENBEHE
o MU EASETHER - FEERN
= BB ORIESEINEERSS A
MO TSN ETE R REABRERAK -
AREBRLEMNEERSE !
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B Purchased Electricity B Non-renewable Fuel
BAES JEAT AR

Type of Energy 2019/20

REJR 3 B FE

Purchased electricity

BAE

Non-renewable fuel
FERI B A AR

Total energy consumption
BEREEAEE

Intensity (per employee) (Note)
RE(FHEER) (M)

2018/19
FE
31,094 kWh
TR
167,271 kWh
TR
198,365 KkWh
TR
4,838 kWh
TR

Note: As at 30 June 2020, the number of full-time employees of the Group was
46 (2019: 41). This number would also be used for calculating other
intensity data.

Hiat - 1R2020%F 6 A30R - AKEMNEBIEE AEA
46 A (20194 : 41 N) » ZEF ARG ER
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

We have introduced a number of measures to improve the
energy efficiency performance, such as maintaining all
equipment periodically to ensure optimal performance to
reduce the consumption of electricity; setting the equipment
into “Power Save” mode when they are idle; choosing the
most energy efficient light sources and consider replacing
incandescent lamp with higher efficiency lamp such as the
fluorescent lamps; cleaning all luminaries lamps regularly and
replace burnt-out lamps promptly as they consume energy and
they do not provide the required light; continuously reminding
employees to switch off all unnecessary office equipment and
lights at the end of the day; keep electrical utilities off when they
are not in use an carrying out periodic maintenance schedule of
all electrical utilities.

Our water consumption mainly contains of office water
consumption for basic cleaning and sanitation. We take steps
to use water efficiently, we're implementing measures to
conserve water resources and reduce our water demand. We
incorporates a range of water conservation measures including
the use of dual flushing system for toilet cubicle and use half
flush for liquid waste; Check for leaks in flushing cisterns,
pipes, taps, etc. and repair them immediately to prevent water
wastage; Install thimbles or water saving devices at taps with
high flow rate; Use water efficient label fittings; Turn off taps
tightly to ensure they do not drip and avoid the tap running
when not in use.

Due to our business nature and operation mainly based in

Singapore, we encountered no difficulty in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Use of Resources (Continued)

Water Consumption (Continued)

0 500 1000 1500

B 2019/2020
W 2019/2020F &

2019/20
2019/205F &

Type of Resource

ERER

Total water consumption
BFEKE

Intensity (per employee) (Note)
mE(BEEE)(HT)

W 2018/2019
B 2018/20195 &

BRR(E)

HIREF ()

A

KFHEFE (&)

il

2000 2500

2018/19
2018/19%
2,028.20 m?
A K
49.47 m3
S K

Note: As at 30 June 2020, the number of full-time employees of the Group was
46 (2019: 41). This number would also be used for calculating other
intensity data.

Packaging Materials
We have no industrial production or any factory facilities and

therefore we do not consume significant amounts of package
materials for product packaging.
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BR HEREIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

The Group pursues the best practices in the environment
protection and focuses on the impact of the Group’s businesses
to the environment and natural resources. In addition to
complying with relevant environmental laws and regulations as
well as properly preserve the natural environment, the Group
has integrated the concept of environmental protection into
its internal management and daily operations, with the aim of
achieving environmental sustainability.

As noise will be generated during our operation process, we
have formulated relevant procedures to avoid significant impact
to environment nearby and ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The MR is responsible to plan and
engage an accredited laboratory to conduct an in-house noise
level measurement and boundary noise level measurement
if necessary. For construction sites, the MR is responsible
to consider plans to ensure that noise levels are within the
acceptable limit as per stated in the regulations. Where
applicable, the Group takes all practicable measure to reduce
or control noise from any machinery, equipment or process
such that no employee is exposed to excessive noise or affect
the public.

In order to control and mitigate the environmental impacts of
the projects in our operations, we have formulated a series of
procedures to assess the environmental risks of the projects
in accordance with the standard of 1ISO14001 environmental
management system. Moreover, regular internal audit on
the effectiveness and level of compliance of management
system are carried out on a regular basis. Relevant measures
to mitigate the corresponding environment risks of the
projects have been carried out in accordance to the relevant
assessment procedures.
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SOCIAL

Talented employees are our greatest asset, they create long-
term value for us and our stakeholders. Our success and
competitiveness depend to a large extent on how we select,
hire, train and retain high-quality employees. In the highly
competitive talent market, we differentiate us through a positive
workplace culture that shares values and achievements with
employees.

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice of any material
non-compliance with employment related laws and regulations
in that would have a significant impact on the Group. The
employment related laws and regulations include, but are
not limited to the Employment Act (Chapter 91 of Singapore)
and Employment of Foreign Manpower Act (Chapter 91A of
Singapore).

We apply robust and transparent recruitment processes
based on merit selection against the job criteria, and recruit
individuals based on their suitability for the position and
potential to fulfill the Group’s current and future needs.

Our basis for compensation and promotion are job-related
skills, qualifications and performances, ensuring that we treat
and evaluate employees and applicants in a fair way and
compensate employees relative to the industry and local labour
markets in which we operate, which consists of a competitive
level of fixed and variable compensation. Remuneration
packages include holidays, annual leave, medical schemes,
group insurance, and discretionary bonus.

The promotion of the Group’s employees is subject to review
regularly. The Group has established objective performance
indicators for annual performance evaluation. Based on the
evaluation result, we offer rewards to employees in encouraging
continuous improvement.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment (Continued)
Retaining Talent and communication

No matter how hard we are recruiting talents, our team cannot
grow strong if we fail to retain them. In addition to rewarding,
we respect employees and appreciate their contributions. We
also show trust to employees and provide a support scheme
encourage them in training or further study to gain new
knowledge and skill.

We humbly listen to employees’ voices. We foster two-way
communication, feedback, ideas suggestion, and we believe it
helps to bring efficiency and improve our internal processes.

By Gender
BRI

Female %%

By Gender

Male B
Female pegis

nE(E
’iE (=)
AT BREREE

Ewm B PIWmAE N BEAL - RAHEM
BEABREANT  BAINEEREEKE
BT R RMEEE TURBREFN
BR - BRMEMEIRRGEE  TRMHX
Fr ot &) 50 B i 1955 ) S HE & DA BT A0 a8
RIRHE

BAECKREBEEINERS - HMEREER
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Number of
Employee Turnover rate
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SOCIAL (Continued) HE(E)
Employment (Continued) ER(&)
Retaining Talent and communication (Continued) AT HEREFE)

By Employment Type

ZERER
Part-time / Contract 35, &4

Full Time 28k

2019/20
By Employment Type REREX 2019/20F E
Full time T
Part time/contract AL

By Employee Category
ZRIEEER
Management E12E
- Technical Staff #{it& T Clerical Staff YZ28T

2019/20
By Employee Category RESEHR 2019/205 &
Management ERE
Clerical staff XEBET
Technical staff BRmET
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SOCIAL (Continued) HeE(E)
Employment (Continued) &R (&)
Retaining Talent and communication (Continued) AT HEREFE)
By Age Group
REwRA R

Below 30 30p%sk AT

31-40 31-40%%

41-50 41-508%

51-60 51-605%

Over 61  615sA £

14

Number of
Employee Turnover rate

By Age Group RERAR 2019/20  2019/20 (Note)

BEAH AR
2019/20F E 2019/20F & (Afat)

Below 30 305K AT

31-40 31-405%

41-50 41-50%%

51-60 51-607%

Over 61 615% 3 A =

Note: The turnover rate of each group is calculated by dividing the turnover  A7iF : &4 B &7t 2k B & LAz A B R 3R 5 B 2 it 2k

number of the group during the Reporting Period by the number of AB R LAZAB AR 202056 H30H 2 B T A&
employees in the group as at 30 June 2020. 1B -
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SOCIAL (Continued) HE(E)
Employment (Continued) ER(&)
Retaining Talent and communication (Continued) ATHEREB(E)
By Work Location
RIfEH R

Singapore #n#

Overseas &5

Mainland China B K[

Number of
Employee Turnover rate

By Work Location BT B 2019/20 2019/20 (Note)

BEAH TRE
2019/205F & 2019/205F EE (HfaE)

Singapore T hn3
Mainland China Fh B A B
Overseas NSZIN

Note: The turnover rate of each group is calculated by dividing the turnover 73 : S4ERIM T 0 R 2 A RIA R4 R 2 Rk A
number of the group during the Reporting Period by the number of HBRAZ AR 2020F6 A30B 2 B T A MG
employees in the group as at 30 June 2020. H e
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Diverse teams fuel innovation and thrive, and we are
committed to creating an inclusive environment that supports
all employees, regardless of race, religion, colour, gender,
physical or mental disability, age, place of origin, marital status,
sexual orientation.

We integrate diversity and inclusion into the entire employment
lifecycle and maintaining a workplace that is free from
discrimination. We are committed to fairness, transparency and
making all employment decisions on the principles of equal
employment opportunity and we have zero tolerance on sexual
harassment in the workplace.

How well employee perform their jobs depends on their
physical and mental health, sustainable work-life balance, and
their working environment safety. Our integrated programs
actively support these fundamental needs. We are prides
ourselves on providing a safe, effective and congenial work
environment. Our safety policies and relevant procedures
actively support these fundamental needs, preventing
accidents in the projects. Our occupational health and safety
management system has been assessed to be in conformance
with 1SO:45001:2018 and OHSAS 18001 international
standards. Moreover, the Group has obtained a bizSAFE Level
Star certification in 2018, which is the highest accreditation
(above bizSAFE Level 3) in the bizSAFE programme (a five-step
programme to assist companies to build up their workplace
safety and health capabilities in order to achieve quantum
improvements in safety and health standards at the workplace)
offered by the Workplace Safety and Health Council in
Singapore.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

We have dedicated a safety officer to be in charge of
occupational health and safety, and we assess the safety risks
of each project in accordance with the standard of OHSAS
18001 occupational health and safety management system. We
established procedures to identify potential hazards and the
assess risks associated with these identified areas. We will then
apply and implement controls to minimise risks to employees,
subcontractors, clients and/or visitors in the project sites. We
provide sufficient training and briefing to all supervisors and
workers to make sure they fully understand the risks and how
to mitigate them. We monitor those risks continuously through
safety checking procedures, tool box meetings. Regular
internal audit on the effectiveness and level of compliance of
occupational health and safety management system are carried
out on a regular basis.

We established internal safety manual to assist with ensuring
employees’ safety. Work at height and different kinds of
electricity work related risks, together with other health
hazards, are common concern in our industry and we require
our employees and our subcontractors’ employees to follow
our workplace safety rules as set out in the safety manual. We
provide suitable personal protective equipment such as safety
helmet and safety boots to our employees based on the type of
works undertaken by them.

We also arrange relevant external trainings (such as scissor
lift operator courses and supervisors safety courses) for our
employees with reference to their expertise, work experience
and work requirements. Emergency and evacuation procedures
were established to response timely and orderly in any major
safety accidents such as fire, building structure instability
and chemical spillage to prevent and deal with any likely
consequent illness and injury that may be associated with them.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Health and Safety (Continued)
Emergency Preparedness and Response (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group.
The relevant laws and regulations include, but are not limited to
Workplace Safety and Health Act (Chapter 354A of Singapore)
and the Work Injury Compensation Act (Chapter 354 of
Singapore). We also did not have any work-related fatalities or
any workday lost due to injury during the Reporting Period.

Development and Training
Staff Development and Training

Learning continuously help to sustain our core values and
culture. We keen to provides our staff, not just to new recruits
but to all, with learning opportunity for upgrading skills
and development as needed. We encourage and support
our employees to participate in personal and professional
training to fulfill the needs of emerging technologies and new
equipment.

Our learning and development program provide internal,
external and on-the-job trainings for all employees to equip
them with the skills and knowledge pertinent to each type of
work. We also attended trainings in relation to work safety,
quality assurance and risk management conducted by
organisations such as the Building and Construction Authority
of Singapore.
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SOCIAL (Continued)
Development and Training (Continued)

Staff Development and Training (Continued)

ZESE5

By Employee Category

Management ERE
Clerical staff NEBT
Technical staff g T
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ETRRERZIE)

2019/20
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training hours

B

Labour Standards
Prevention of Child Labor or Forced Labor

We are doing our part to help avoid child and forced labor.
Child and forced labor is strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by laws and regulations.
Personal data are collected during the process to assist in
the selection of suitable candidates and to verify candidates’
of personal data. The Human Resources Department also
ensures identity documents are carefully checked. If violation
is involved, it will be dealt with as required by laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any material
non-compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations in Singapore that would have a significant impact
on the Group. The child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to the Employment Act
(Chapter 91 of Singapore).
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SOCIAL (Continued)

We understand the importance of supply chain management
in mitigating the indirect environmental and social risks. We
support local suppliers with over 90% of our suppliers are from
Singapore. We also concern of the environmental and social
practices of the suppliers, and try to engage suppliers with
responsible acts to the society in view of green supply chain
management.

We implemented measures to monitor the quality of our
suppliers and subcontractors, including their capability of
undertaking works with quality and risk management, their
abilities to resolve any issues encountered, and how well they
follow our guidelines and instructions on workplace safety.
Our project management team will inspect the site conditions
and closely monitor their performance. In addition to quality
and safety management. We also expect our suppliers and
subcontractors share core value to sustainability with us,
including wills to protecting environment, fairness to employee,
attitude towards avoiding child and forced labours, integrity
and honesty etc.

Achieving and maintaining high quality standard for projects
are utmost important for sustainable growth of the Group. We
believe completing works that meet or exceed our customer’s
requirements is crucial not only for safety, but also for job
reference and future business opportunities. In order to ensure
that we deliver high quality services and sustainable projects
to our customers, the process of the projects is controlled and
monitored regularly. The Group obtained certification in 2018
certifying its quality management to be in conformance with the
requirements of ISO 9001:2015 standard.

During the Reporting Period, we did not notice any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, concerning health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress. The relevant
laws and regulations include, but are not limited to the Building
Control Act (Chapter 29 of Singapore) and the Personal Data
Protection Act 2012.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

We established a quality management system in accordance
with the requirements of ISO 9001, OHSAS 18001 and ISO
14001 to develop a sustainable performance-oriented culture to
pursue continuous improvement on quality rather than adopting
a short-term and project based approach.

We put great attention to customer opinion. Qur senior
management team regularly communicates with our customers
and conducts site visits to collect feedbacks from our
customers. We would follow up and respond to their feedbacks
in a timely manner with a view to maintain our service standard.
Throughout the project implementation, we may from time to
time be invited to attend inspection sessions and progress
meetings held by our customers and/or the project employers.

All information of customers and suppliers (including
intellectual property rights) are considered as highly
confidential and are kept safely and confidentially. We restrict
any unauthorised access to avoid data leakage, no employee
could access to confidential data unless they are authorised
with genuine working need. All employees also have to
comply with the internal guidelines and employment contracts
containing confidentiality clauses to ensure they take it as
personally responsible.
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HMSEEREPNER - SREEER
BEBEEFPERRRMBRSFEDNEL K
SEFPRE - -HMASAKRETPREL
EREE - UERRGEE - LANEL
Ee2BREPIREZZ2MAES K%K
HERIBTHRERHEESH -

EPRHEBNMBEER (BRENBERE)
HERASERTEAT2 BREN TR
RIF o HPIRBIERIREIRENFE - BA
BEBEBERR - RIFBELNITHERE
BAMERE IHMAFRREEIRE - A
BT IR AETRRESI KRB ERE HR
MERAR - AREEBUAEBEAR
(E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -EREARE

SOCIAL (Continued)

We do not tolerate all forms of corruption, fraud and all other
misbehaviors. We specifically emphasize integrity, honesty
and fairness and integrate those essential concepts in our
business. We have established several policies related to
these issues, and we expect employees to comply with them.
Those policies require our employees, to name a few, to make
decisions ethically, to refuse bribery and insider trading, to
avoid conflicts of interest, to comply with laws and regulations,
to carry on business honestly and with transparency and to
maintain accurate business records. We promote relevant
policies to employees through training to help them understand
how to identify potential threats and ways to avoid conflict
of interests, accepting advantages, leakage of confidential
information, embezzlement of the Group’s assets in one’s
position, fraudulent financial statements, etc.

To further mitigate the fraud risks, Audit Committee
continuously evaluates and monitor the Group’s internal
control effectiveness, identify control deficiency and potential
improvement areas. Once a deficiency is identified, the
responsible departments will take timely remediate actions.

We also adopt a whistleblowing policy and procedures
for all levels and operations. Staff can raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible improprieties such as misconduct
and malpractice in any matter related to the Group. These
policies and procedures can be found in the staff handbook.
Reports and complaints received will be handled in a prompt
and fair manner. Such policy also aims at protecting whistle-
blowers from unfair dismissal, victimisation and unwarranted
disciplinary actions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -EREARE

SOCIAL (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, We did not notice any material
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The related
laws and regulations include, but are not limited to the
Prevention of Corruption Act (Chapter 241 of Singapore). We
also had no record of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against us or our employees during the
Reporting Period.

Charity and volunteer services help to turn our passion for
giving into action. We focus our contribution to the community
by providing the best healthcare environment, our management
team constantly helps projects with an emergency requirement
or sponsor basis. We also encourage to our employees in
volunteer activities, encourage them to provide financial and
other kinds of support to the community.

HE(E)

RBEHE - RALRBEREFNEARE
EREBEBER DR BFFRARBEER
FOERMIER - HEMERIERBEE
TR LB ECGIINEOEPIFE241F) -
EHREHA - RATESHRMALEMD
BTIREMNESTTANE TREEREMNN
FCEE ©

BEREIRBAEPRSRMANRBEL
B/1TE - HMIBBREERENEBERREE
RiEEMEER  RANEEER TGS
BESFRNAEBRHUELED - M
NEBMEI2NELEY  SE®RSEEL
RIS R E S o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRE HERELRE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZFREEAXSFMERARCEE Herk
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ER|EIES|I) ESIX

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Statement

IRHER - BH - —REER
BRARIER g 4: 0. 2

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—MEE BRABERNAERBHN  F/KRLHOEES - HRD
BERBEEEVNELSH -
(a) B3R &
(b) EBTFTHBITABEAXENMHEBEAE KSR
BB o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Air
emissions data. Emissions,
Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
FSEAE BUEIRAT A RS $R S A R B R B - HER — BEREEN - RE
RESHE X
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Emissions —
and, where appropriate, intensity. Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
FRAEBIEIRA1.2 mERBAERE(UEAE) R(ER)EE - Y REREBHERK
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Emissions — Waste
and, where appropriate, intensity. Management
BBEAEBUETRAL.3 FEXAEREEMES (ANETE) & B —EEME R

(ER)EE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -EREARE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZFREEAXSFERAR(EE Herk
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ERMEESIYRIIKR(E)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Statement

IRER - BEH - —REER
REAEMER i -0 2

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Emissions — Waste
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Management
A BUEIRAT 4 FEAREREEYES (AWTE) R P — R E IR

(WER)RE -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions Emissions — Air
and results achieved. Emissions,
Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
BABRAE IEIRA1.5 i UBE HE 2 BV IR B S PSR - HERY) —BE R - R =
REBBEM
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and Emissions — Waste

nonhazardous wastes are handled, reduction  Management
initiatives and results achieved.

FASR A IEIRA1.6 HHEEREEREEREMN L REEEE Y- EHER
BIHE e S PTG AR ©

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, Use of Resources
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

— R BHERER(BIERLR « KEREAMFRERME) A BRER
B -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by  Use of Resources —

type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh Energy Consumption
in ’000s) and intensity

RSB R IRA2.1 RENESMEER SEERR(WE - S5k BREA-ERER
HREFEE (A TETRRFAE) REE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR HEREIRS

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
FTEHEE  EBH - —

B RERIER

Description

P

BEREBERZMAERQA(RE - #HEK
ERBEESDREIRE)

Section/Statement

E8: i1

KPI'A2.2

FRSRAARIERA2.2

KPI'A2.3

FRS B RIERA2.3

KPI A2.4

FAS AR IR 1RA2.4

KPI'A2.5

FRSAERMIERA2.5

General Disclosure

—RRIEER

Water consumption in total and intensity
RFEKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

et BE IR A AR s 5 B PR IS R R -

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

R USREGE AR LRI BERIFE - LA RIRTT
KM e8I R ATSRR -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SN mATABREM R E (LAERTE) & (13
R)BEEBMLE -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

IR EITAHRERRAEREKREAZEDN
R e
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Use of Resources —
Water Consumption

Use of Resources -
Energy Consumption

BIREH —sERERE

Use of Resources -
Water Consumption

BIRER — KRB

Not applicable, as we
do not use packaging
material in our
operation

NEA - ARRFNER
ME B EM

The Environment and
Natural Resources

RELRAER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -EREARE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZHEEASXSMERARNGEE ek
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ERMEESIYRIIKR(E)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Statement

IRER - BEH - —REEK
B RERIER g 4:0 - 2.

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of The Environment and
activities on the environment and natural Natural Resources —
resources and the actions taken to manage Noise Management,
them. Environmental Impact

of Projects

BB AFE1RAS R EBEHHRBERRAERNERTER BRERRAER-BREE
ERNEERETENTE - 2 -EANRRYE

General Disclosure Information on: Employment

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—M R EATMNRE  BELEA - TERE =4
BRE - FERE - 2t RESUREMESR
KAEFIHY -
(a) BR: &
(b) EBTFHBITABEANFEMMABEEEZRAN
HER o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -EREARE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZFREEAXSFMERARCEE Herk
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ERMEESIYRIIKR(E)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description
FTEER  BEH - —REER

Section/Statement

REAEMER

i

E8: i 1)

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, Employment
age group and geographical region.

BABRAE R 1EB 1 IR EBEER - FiRARN KRB SNEES (ERE
e o

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Employment
and geographical region.

BSR4 BUIEIRB1.2 BRI FiERI MBS SEEREE B1E

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

—MEE FARELZ2TERREIMRBEEEHEBEN fERER S
EEH
(a) BUR: &
(b) BEBTHBITABEAXZENHEBAR KA
HEH o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety

FASR AR M IERB2.1

B T e R LT A A BR L 2 -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B -EREARE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZFREAXSFERAR(EE Herk

STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH- - —REER
AREVIER

KPI B2.2
FASARMUIEIRB2.2

KPI B2.3

PSR A IERB2.3

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B3.1

FASR AR IR 1RB3.1

KPI B3.2

B4R IE1RB3.2

Description

Lost days due to work injury.

ERBEESDRSIRE)

Section/Statement

L 8: i1

Health and Safety

HAIGEATIERR - EEEZ S
Description of occupational health and Health and Safety

safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored.

RPN R ERE L 2156 - ARAH RERZ 2

MITREBTE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge  Development and
and skills for discharging duties at work. Training

Description of training activities.

BRI E B BT TR E A B K R R R

HER - HAEIES -

The percentage of employees trained by Development and
gender and employee category (e.g. senior Training
management, middle management).

RERNREERMN(NRAEERE  PHREEE BRI

F)ENNXIEEBDL ©

The average training hours completed per Development and
employee by gender and employee category.  Training
RMRIREEERE S BREETKEIIN R S IE

T -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -EREARE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZFREEAXSFMERARCEE Herk
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ERMEESIYRIIKR(E)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Statement

IRER - BEH - —REER
REAEMER i -0 2

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—MRIXEE BN ILET RoAHISIH : & T AR
(a) BUXR: &
(b) ETHBEITABERZENRBERRAD
A o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Labour Standards
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
BB AE R 1EB4 A R B E R E AR E T REHIST - & TAER
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Labour Standards
practices when discovered.
BB B R 1RB4.2 MR IRE R B RRHR A BB AT ERER & T HR
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain
risks of the supply chain. Management
—MRIXER EIRHEENREREERRBR - e e e
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  Supply Chain
Management
BB AE A5 1RB5.1 minmE o HERHE - HrEgE R
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B -EREARE

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE ZFREAXSFERAR(EE Herk
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ERMEESIYRIIKR(E)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Statement

IRER - BEH - —REER
REAEMER i -0 2

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging No yet disclose this
suppliers, number of suppliers where the year
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

BSR4 IE1EB5.2 B EEARERNIED  MEARTEREBN AEEWRELKE
WHEEREEE - LRBBEEHNRITRER
FE o

General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.
—RIXEE BREMRHEERNRENEEELS - BE EmEE
BFEIALEBEEARBR I ED -
(a) BUXR: &
(b) BFHBITARBEAXENHEBEZR
RO E RS -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Not applicable, as we
subject to recalls for safety and health have no product
reasons.

BABRAE AE12B6.1 EENDEXERERTARTTEEREAMA TNER  arRBfLsE
ER & IER s A o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR HEREIRS

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
FEHE - EBHE - —

REAEMER

KPI B6.2

A BB IR 1EB6.2

KPI B6.3

A4 48 M 15 137B6.3

KPI B6.4

B A 17B6.4

KPI B6.5

FRSR 4B MIE1RB6.5

General Disclosure

— R E

Description

i

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

RERNEmSREHIRFE R AREE X -

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

ot B 4 o I AR I AR E R B RV B B

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

LS S e BE NEMEIWIET o

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.

iR B & B RHRIE RALBIBGR
RERTEA -

- AR AERIBTT

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
BRI LR - 9% - MEERERER
(a) BUXR: &

(b) MFHBTAEBAHEMEAE R
BERY -
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BEREBERZMAERQA(RE - #HEK
ERBEESDREIRE)

Section/Statement

E8: i 1)

Not yet disclose this
year

AEZARIELFE

Product Responsibility

pil

EmAE

Not yet disclose this
year

AERIWRIEHRE

Product Responsibility

EmAE

Anti-corruption

RES



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR HEREIRS

INDEX TABLE OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

FRER - BE - —

BRERIER

KPI B7.1

B A IR 1R BT .1

KPI B7.2

BASR AR IRIRBT.2

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B8.1

B 4E 512 B8 1

KPI B8.2

RAGEAE WIRIZBS.2

Description

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.

ﬁéﬁ&%,ﬁﬂFﬂ%ﬁéﬁ)\iﬁﬁiﬁﬂjia%ﬁ
BT RARMHEE LFRER

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Ry SR b R B AR T - A RMERARIT R ER
Tk ©

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

FANMRBERTHBITACEMEHEFTE
REREAZBEHGERLEMNBDABUR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

HIFRERE(INHE  REEE  SIFTK
R Xt - 885) °

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
the focus area.

EEIHBEMBAER (NS EHEH) -

ERBERZAARQAC(RE  HER
ERHEESDREIRE)

Section/Statement

L 8: i1

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption

Community Investment

HERKE

Community Investment

HERE

Not yet disclose this
year

AERZWRELEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 35 B

To the Shareholders of HKE Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKE
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (herein
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to 191, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes
in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 3R

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (the “IAASB”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

REVBBRRELBRE(E)

EEREEREFTHEFENEZS (B
METREZENRES ) AEMEERS
SHER([BEREER D)ETEZ - B
FEAT  EFNETHEEFNREAN (&
B FE AR E R A B AER B A
—EE— M - RIEBEFR SR RS
READEE G 2 [BE S EETA)
(TNESBASFHI)) » BEBUR EEHE -
W EEIESBATRIBTRMEREE - &
FRE BEMESNEZERIERTENR
BAEWSBESFNERIREHER -

REESNEXHE  BEREZFEARE
FRNERAFENGAVBRRTRER
MER BFEERGRAVBHRRER
RHEEREAREELEER MAEH
HEEREFHERESR °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

355 3L % By B 35 B

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEEXEE

Contract Revenue Recognition and
Accounting for Construction Contracts
BN ERRAREESNETREERLE

The Group is involved in construction projects for
which it applies the input method to measure the
Group’s progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation satisfied over time in
accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
W/'th Customers.

SEBEARARANEZTE BESEXETHELD
;EH’HEV WRIR BB B s sl 5 2RI 155% &5 F

BRI T AR —RERABEKRK 2 EZEEER -

The revenue and profit recognised in a year on
these projects is dependent, amongst others, on
the assessment of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the construction projects (i.e. contract cost
incurred for work performed) relative to the total
expected inputs to the construction projects
(i.e. estimated total budgeted contract cost
committed for the projects).
FARZEEBERNOWR FoaMEORR (KR8
F) ESEREEEREEBMES HFIL ARG (B
EETIRMESNSHKA) HEETEE TR KR
AR (BNIE B LSRR S KRR ) B LL Bl -
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REVBHRRELBRE(F)

How the matter was addressed in the audit

BEEEERTHERRL X

We have reviewed the design and implementation

of key controls over the significant risk relating

to revenue recognition and contracts assets and

liabilities.

EN‘E%F‘)%JEE%H&EEEE%&A%EE&EEE’UEXEL
G I BASRE I ER 5T R TTIB R

We have reviewed the Group’s revenue recognition
policies to determine whether it is compliant with
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
including the assessment of the Group’s efforts or
inputs to the construction projects relative to the
total expected inputs to the construction projects.
ZEZEEH EEENOREHRBE  UEERET
SRR BRELERFEISREF M - BIET
it EEENBREEAMESHIRAERZEERH
TEERIE ARREER LI o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 3R

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED BEMBERREBEZBRE(E
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued) BEEEREEE)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

ARELER BESEERTHERERL X

Management's judgement and estimation in For selected projects, our audit procedures
determining the budgeted costs to complete may  included the following:
have a significant impact on the Group’s revenue  ¥MEFWIER @ ZENEZEFBEEATSE

and profit.
EEBET R LBERANY RAOHE RIEEtAIee i agreed projects contract sum to signed
¥ EEEMNRENRFEEERTE - contracts and variation orders;

. HEEARNEBRTAMRIAHOMAIER
Contract revenue recognition and accounting for

construction contract is disclosed in Notes 6 and  ii. vouched the actual cost incurred during
17 respectively. the year to details of supplier invoices and
SRR R RBRES NG TRIESD BIEM 6 R subcontractors invoices to ensure the validity
FEA1THEE - and accuracy of the costs;

i. NEAMELERRAZHEREZERERSER
BRI NERZFRAR A R RN

ii. performed cut-off testing to verify contract
costs were taken up in the appropriate
financial year;

i, ETEEAR  AERBESNRETLIRE BV RE
EPN:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 35 B

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED BEMBERRBEZRE(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued) REZEREE(E)

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

ARELER BESEERTHERERL X

iv. assessed and vouched the estimated cost to
complete by substantiating costs that have
been committed to quotations and contracts
entered;

iv. BRZTHADEENRERARSONAAE - 7
fts 30 AT 7 LA

v.  performed retrospective review by comparing
the total actual contract costs incurred at
completion against the total budgeted contract
costs to assess the reasonableness of the
estimates used by the management;

v. BREBERINREFRZEENSOEKEAETRBES
@R AETEEEES - U EEEEMAMG
FTEVE M

vi. for projects in progress, we further recomputed
the percentage of the progress of the contract
based on the input method to test the accuracy
of the percentage of the progress to determine
the revenue; and

vii BETTIEEME  BEERBRAKE-—FEN
AEANERBEOL  MRRERE B DL AR
- AREE W &

vii. for projects completed during the year,
we obtained the certificate of substantial
completion and verified that the remaining
revenue has been captured.

vii. BMFATIEEMS  EFNEEERIEZH
WiZEDESESR K -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 3R

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED BEMBERREBEZBRE(E

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREERSR

How the matter was addressed in the audit

BEEEERTHNERRL X

We then compared total contract revenue to actual
cost incurred plus estimated cost to complete, and
assessed for foreseeable losses.
FEEMASE VAN R BB EEMNBAN ETRE T
TARAEITHE - WH A TE R BEEITAE -

We also examined the project documentation
(including contracts effective during the financial
period, terms and conditions) and discussed with
management on the progress of significant projects
to determine if there are any changes such as
delays, penalties, overruns which may result in
liquidated damages.

EEMREEREENFRE(EERMBBEERZE
)RR YERERERREARENEE
NEERSFERESIBEBEZTHENTMED - Hlan
JERR - BR ~ X% o

Based on our procedures above, we have assessed
the Group's revenue and actual costs recognised in
profit or loss to be appropriate.

B LR - EF5FE SEENKERERRZT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 35 B

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 3R

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

REVBBRRELBRE(E)

BERAREZAREREEKR G ENZE
SR BRI B REENREE QR K
PIMERBEER  RREEMAFiRBRE
MEEHMBHRE  MEFETHRER
EMBHRRBULENERAEE  AE
SZEEREMBHRR A FERNRGFXE
MM BB A RRAL -

ERESEMBHRRE  EFEABEN
i BEEEKELENES  LRERS
BREZEENZETR(IER) - RIFESH
# BEREBERIFILEE K2
WEEMERAITHHE - TRIZARBNA
SERERERNGTE -

AEEREERE E5EMMBHmERE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 35 B

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 3R

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

REVBBRRELBRE(E)

AAEEMEAEABRRNRERER
fEH &t At MR EMN SR -

HESRAKECZGTERNGE
ML &R - YRIBFMERNET R
& MERLFAEENRES HE5HE
MBERERNELEARRBMNER
SFREENEATEEN - WESF
RAFEEATHETE  IBALER
BEMBETRFEREIRGEAY
BHERTOEBRE - HEBRED
R RIBRIBRERER - BEFHEH
DERBEZREHRE BHILARE
MEERE - A - RRFBEHLIBFR
MRS EREEEERHELE -

FHEFEE B mRNEEENN G
RERND (BEREER)UAREE
MBmEREE A TREMBERZSMNE
T8 o

B EEREANERBAXBHEDNTE
BRERGE MEENETRE N
BHEAMBRRERER - BFA
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ERERERAERIEME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
355 3L % By B 35 B

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms Tay Hwee Ling.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants

Singapore
29 September 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEREREMEEKER
Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

Revenue
Cost of services/sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains (losses)
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, representing
other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (S$ cents)

Wy 5 6
AR, SHE R AR

EF
HA YA
Hip ezt (B8 ) 8
TR X

BE KA

~N

BB AR 9
FrigfiF sz 10

FE®A

Ht2mEas -
HEAJEH7EE

Ba kB H
BEBINETEHE R
=8 BEEHEMEE
Wz - MBRFRIE

FEZHANEAHE

SREF
AR E (FES) 12

2019
20194

2020
20204

S$ S$

3 003 7T Nt

10,403,292
(6,705,927)

3,697,365
485,663

(28,185)
(1,423,815)

2,731,028
(468,417)

2,262,611

2,262,611

0.28

T A RS ERR BEM B AE o

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 2 R4r
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FReMBERRE

As at 30 June 2020

202096 H30H

2020 2019
20204 20194

S$ S$
#h03K TT AN T

100

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Contract assets

Bank balances and cash

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liability
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liability

Net assets

AERERE
FRBEE
ME - BER&E
EREEE

FRBEERE

RBEE
B 5 RWHIR

HAibEWIR « e K

BRI RIR
BHEE
RITEBRNMAS
mMEEERE

RBRE

B 5 R EME R

BHAME
HEAE
FEA PSR
mERERE
MEEEFE
FRBEE
HEARE
BRI R E

FEREBAEAR

EEFE
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13
14

15

16
17
18

19
17
20

20
22

728,723
728,723

3,399,887

151,653
2,498,815
22,464,228

28,514,583

766,057
43,850

462,108
1,272,015

27,242,568

27,310
27,310

27,943,981



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBERAE

As at 30 June 2020

20206 A30H

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes S$ S$
HtaE 703 T TN T
EQUITY s

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital f& A 23 1,335,760
Share premium I 7% B 24 15,352,340
Merger reserve xR 1,000,119
Translation reserve BnE#E =
Accumulated profits Ritm A 10,255,762

Equity attributable to owners of the ZA2RQA T EE AELER
Company 27,943,981

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 191 were  Z99E 191 B M4 & B ¥k & 2 70202049
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  H29BBEEFe# & REERE - WA T

29 September 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: NIEERKREE -
Wu An Ming Koh Lee Huat [iE¥ Bk
Chief Executive Officer and ~ Executive Director TTHABRAFHITEEF HTEF

Executive Director

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 2 B4R & B IS RABEMI M T -

W
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FaHERR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H IFATBFE

Share Share Merger  Translation
capital premium reserve reserve Accumulated
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note A) (Note B) profits Total
& AR BERE

) ) (HitB) A EH
S$ S$ S$ S$
T Mg BT Mg BT T

Balance at 1 July 2018 W20185 7518 2 & 1,335,760 15,352,340 1,000,119 - 7,993,161 25,681,370

Total comprehensive income /8 2 Bz £

for the year
Profit for the year, FERH - AEE

representing total e

comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 2,262,611 2,262,611
Total @z = - - - 2,262,611 2,262,611
Balance at 30 June 2019 A201956A30H 2 & 1,335,760 15,352,340 1,000,119 - 10,285,762 27,943,981

Total comprehensive income /82 El# £

for the year
Profit for the year EERH - - = S 58,303 58,303
Other comprehensive FEAMZEYNE

income for the year - - - 487,255 - 487,255
Total Foh = - - 487,255 58,303 545,558

Balance at 30 June 2020 202064300 2 &tk 1,335,760 15,352,340 1,000,119 487,255 10,314,065 28,489,539

Notes HtaE

A:  Merger reserve represents the difference between the cost of acquisition ~ A: AfiHEEE L —MBRFEREEBEHETH
pursuant to the group reorganisation in prior financial year and the total W RS PR 7R B4 U P B RS AR AN 4 BB 2 R £ 88 o
value of share capital of the entities acquired.

B:  Exchange differences relating to the translation from the functional B: FBREKREEEINE QRS ZH MK
currencies of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries into Singapore dollars are THERZE  EREM2EKEERARRR
brought to account by recognising those exchange differences in other HREBE B I ERDD ReTEAR -
comprehensive income and accumulating them in a separate component
of equity under the header of translation reserve.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 2 RARE M EHREBEHIEE ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

FalaftER

Financial year ended 30 June 2020

B2 20209F6 H30H IFATF/Z

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Depreciation for property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation for right-of-use assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Interest income

Interest on lease liabilities
Unrealised foreign exchange gain

Operating cash flows before working capital

changes

Movements in working capital:

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and

prepayments
Contract assets

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

Decrease in fixed deposit pledged

Interests received

Net cash from investing activities

REED

B B¢ A1t A
BT OIERIELHE -

ME - BERRETE

EREEERE

HEME - BE KRB

Yo g
FBHA
HEREME
REIRSNE Yy 28

LEETEDAN

MUTE A =
KEEEME

EELETEE

B 5 RWHIR
HisEWFR - e
B RIR
BREE

85 R E M RN FR
BMAE

REmRBRE

EAEHR
REZHREREFHE

REEH
BEME - WEk&E
HEME - BE L&A

FriS k1A
& E B3R D
2 UFE

RETHFREREFE

2019
20194

S$
AT

2,731,028
101,589

(29,952)
(455,621)

(28,947)

2,318,097

1,243,297
1,640
(1,468,533)

(129,192)
19,597

1,984,906
(1,087,335)

897,571

(165,375)
29,952

175,000
455,621

495,198

HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED | — ==&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

FaRatER

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

2020 2019
20204 20194

S$ S$
03K T ¥ AN T

Financing activities
Interest on lease liabilities
Repayment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year, represented by bank balances and
cash (Note 18)

BMEEE
HEREHNE -
EEHERE -

BMEEE AR EFE -

Be kRS EEYIEINGERE 1,392,769
EXEFHHIFFINERS
HEHho e
28,947
FUHeRREFEY
21,042,512

FRBERASEEY - &
BITHEBRAE(M18)
22,464,228

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 2 R4RA M ERERBEMI M FE o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

1. GENERAL

HKE Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
and registered as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 18 August 2017 and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company was registered with the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong as a non-Hong Kong company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”)
on 13 October 2017.

The principal place of business is at Unit 2004, 20/F,
K11 Atelier, 18 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding
company. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in provision of
integrated design and building services in the medical and
healthcare sectors with expertise in performing radiation
shielding works.

—REHR

HKE Holdings Limited ([ & X &) |)
201768 A 18BERAEH S K
UREBERREBREERAR AR
MREBBERXHMBRA A (T
AT ER T - B EEM
it & Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands °

AKRABRER2017F10813HIBEAD
aEH (BB EMIE22F ) ([ A A&
Bl ) E16BREBEB R A EMER KT
MAEIEEBRT -

AARETELEMIBATBNERYD
8 4% £ B FE 1855 K11 Atelier 204
2004F c ARA B —REKEERAD
A e ARRREWNB AR (HE [ AE
BDNETEXEHAEEERRBITER
HIRA R NEERS - WABET
BEEHE TN EEMNH -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

1. GENERAL (Continued)

The Company was a subsidiary of Skylight lllumination
Limited, incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"),
which was also the Company’s ultimate holding company.
On 15 July 2019, the Company’s holding company,
Skylight Illumination Limited, had entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Eagle Fortitude
Limited (the “Offeror”), a third party, to dispose its entire
shareholdings of 600,000,000 ordinary shares (“Sale
Shares”) in HKE Holdings Limited, representing 75% of
the total issued share capital of the Company, at the price
of HK$0.48 per Sale Share. The SPA for this disposal
was made effective on 22 July 2019. As a result of the
disposal, the Offeror is the Company’s holding company
with effect from 22 July 2019. On 28 August 2019, the
Offeror had acquired an additional 315,000 shares in the
Company at the price of HK$0.48 per share from its public
shareholders, effectively owning 600,315,000 shares in the
Company in total, representing 75.039% of the total issued
share capital of the Company. On 15 October 2019, an
aggregate of 315,000 shares in the Company were placed
to a placee who is a third party independent of and not a
core connected person of the Company and not a party
acting in concert with the Offeror, at a placing price of
HK$0.48 per share (“Placing Down”). Accordingly, after
the completion of Placing Down, the Offerror effectively
owns 600,000,000 shares in the Company, representing
75% of the total issued share capital of the Company.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), and the presentation currency of the
Company and its principal subsidiaries (Note 31) is
Singapore dollars (“S$”").

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 30

June 2020 are approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 29 September 2020.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Change of functional currency of the Company — Prior to
1 July 2019, the functional currency of the Company was S$.

The determination of functional currency takes into
consideration the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates. IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates requires an entity to reassess its
functional currency when there is a change in the facts and
circumstances which affect the economic environment.
Following the change of the major shareholder effective
from July 2019, the Company incurs operating expenses
mainly denominated in HK$ and financing required for
the Group’s future business expansion, by way of bank
borrowings and/or shareholder’s funds, are also expected
to be funded in HK$. Accordingly, management has
reassessed and determined that the functional currency of
the Company to be HK$ with effect from 1 July 2019, which
appropriately reflects the underlying transactions, events
and conditions that are relevant to the Company.

Consequently, all balances of the Company as of 1 July
2019 were translated from S$ to HK$ using the exchange
rate of S$1:HK$0.1732 as at 1 July 2019. This change in
functional currency to HK$ has been applied prospectively
from 1 July 2019 in accordance with IAS 21. Nevertheless,
the presentation currency for the Company and the Group
will keep at S$ until such time that there are changes to the
composition and underlying operating entities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

For the purpose of preparing and presenting the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2020, the Group has consistently applied the
accounting policies which conform with IFRSs, which are
effective for the accounting period beginning 1 July 2019.

The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs does not
result in changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
has no material effect on the amounts reported for the
current or prior years, except as disclosed below.

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 16 Leases
(as issued by the IASB in January 2016) that is effective for
annual periods that begin on or after 1 January 2019.

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with
respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to lessee accounting by removing the distinction
between operating and finance lease and requiring the
recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at
commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets when such recognition
exemptions are adopted. In contrast to lessee accounting,
the requirements for lessor accounting have remained
largely unchanged. The impact of the adoption of IFRS
16 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is
described below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs 3. FERHNIIRKEITERYBRELE

(Continued) RI(#&)

The date of initial application of IFRS 16 for the Group is AEEVINERBEBGTBREERE

1 July 2019. 1655/ A 83 A22019F 718 -

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the cumulative AEBEHEBRTBEAERBEY

catch-up approach which: EREERIFE165E - BEHZE -

e requires the Group to recognise the cumulative effect . %EEKE 15 47 20 e 3 I R B 745
of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment to the HMEEAFIGHRH R EER
opening balance of retained earnings at the date of Eﬁﬂﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ H EAR B BT F )
initial application; and BRI &k

e does not permit restatement of comparatives, which o TRAIBILEBETFT  HEEBR
continue to be presented under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. BEER g R 175 R ER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs
(Continued)

The Group has made use of the practical
expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to
reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease.
Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance
with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to
those leases entered or changed before 1 July 2019.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to
the concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether
a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether
the customer has the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. This is in contrast to the focus on ‘risks
and rewards’ in IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Group applies the definition of a lease and
related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all lease
contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 July
2019 (whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease
contract). The new definition in IFRS 16 does not
significantly change the scope of contracts that meet
the definition of a lease for the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs
(Continued)

Former operating leases

IFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS

17, which were off-balance-sheet.

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases, the Group:

(a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities in the statements of financial position,
initially measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, with the right-of-use
asset adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments in accordance with

IFRS 16.C8(b)(ii);

(b) Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets
and interest on lease liabilities in the statement

of profit or loss; and

(c) Separates the total amount of cash paid
into a principal portion (presented within
financing activities) and interest (presented
within financing activities) in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for
impairment in accordance with I1AS 36 Impairment of

Assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs
(Continued)

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low-value assets, the Group has
opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-
line basis as permitted by IFRS 16. This expense
is presented within administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group has used the following practical
expedients when applying the cumulative catch-up
approach to leases previously classified as operating
leases applying IAS 17.

The Group has applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities to leases for
which the lease term ends within 12 months of
the date of initial application.

The Group has excluded initial direct costs from
the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

The Group has used hindsight when determining
the lease term when the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for the
current year (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(c)

Financial impact of initial application of IFRS 16

The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 July 2019 is 2.09% per annum.

The following table shows the operating lease
commitments disclosed applying IAS 17 at 30 June
2019, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application and the lease
liabilities recognised in the statement of financial
position at the date of initial application.

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019

P& P #RT B2 AR A T B PR Bt S 3 o5 2
RI(#&)

PSR [ A R 37 BT I AR A8 5T B PR B

BEEER (&)

B B8 & ER|FE16 7 H & (/5)

FEHAN2019F7 1B ME
MRRPERNAEE B/ I
FHEABALEERENR A
2.09% ©

TRAARAR2019F6 A30H &
AR e ERE17RFTHEN
wEHEAE(BEERYVTSER
HEIR IS E XA KRR ) R
I e R B B B S AR R R A
RNHEAE -

¥ AN T

7201956 A30H &Y

(Note 25) AR E A (K E25) 147,915
Less: Short-term leases B REHEE (38,192)
Less: Effect of discounting the above amounts B e BB E (1,020)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019 R2019F7H1HERH

HEAE 108,703
Analysed as: DA
Current T E 93,586
Non-current SEME 15,117
108,703
The Group has assessed that there is no tax impact AEED R AE R R %
arising from the application of IFRS 16. HMEERFICHRTISEEB B
L

Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liability at the date of initial
application, with no impact to the Group’s beginning
retained earnings.

=

EREEERYZRER BBz
ERHERBENSHEITE #A
SENRVRERNTEZE

HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED | —2=S & F 1§ 113



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020

B 2202096 H30H IFATEEIZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has not applied the following new
and revised IFRSs that are relevant to the Group that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3

Framework

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 1

IFRS 17 and Amendment to

IFRS 17

Definition of Material’

Definition of a Business’

Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®
Reference to the Conceptual Framework*

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract*

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use*

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020¢

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®

Insurance Contracts®
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

e Effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after
the beginning of that period.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with
early application permitted, including in financial statements not
yet authorised for issue at 28 May 2020. The amendment is also
available for interim reports.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
On 4 May 2020, an ED Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (Proposed amendment to IAS 1) was issued for comments
to defer the effective date of the amendment by one year to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The directors of the Company considers that the
application of the other new and revised standards and
amendments will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial position and performance as well as disclosure in
a foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period as explained in the accounting policies
set out below and in accordance with the applicable IFRSs
issued by the IASB.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in the financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance within
IFRS 16 Leases (since 1 January 2019) or IAS 17 (before
application of IFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and companies
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when a company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiary to bring its accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under
control of the controlling entity.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where it
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
earlier.
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration for each acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition date fair values of assets
given, liabilities incurred by the group to the former owners
of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition
includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values
are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they
qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below).
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the
group’s previously held interests in the acquired entity are
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date the group attains control) and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss,
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under the IFRS are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

° Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards transactions with share-based payment
awards transactions of the acquirer in accordance
with the method in IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date; and

° Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see below), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

The measurement period is the period from the date
of acquisition to the date the group obtains complete
information about facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date and is subject to a maximum of one
year from acquisition date.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the Group’s statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses (“ECL”), through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition.

For financial instruments other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated
future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost, except for short-term balances when the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subjected to impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables and contract assets). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial asset.

The Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
IFRS 9 for trade receivables and contract assets. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors as well as current
and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other
hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting
date or an actual default occurring.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after
reporting date.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from financial analysts and
governmental bodies, as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor, or the length of
time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial
asset has been less than its amortised cost;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED

4.

EXEHBERE)

s BEERMIAEERBRHINET
SEREER - PIIERAD
EFEEE  ERENEMERR
ELA SE@MEEAFEER
BN AR RIEE

e HEXE - RSEERBIERNE
HEINES) - BAKERES
ABERBEENENERE TRF

s ERARLXEERAAHEE
Bl Rk

. EBANEET - EERKIEE
EERREHOEATHEE
B AR AN DB
TS -

i bl S HE S RIOE - WA AR
BHBIENR AEEKEKRE R
BEZEERRB VP HEREREE
m-BRIERNEEREAERAREEX
FZEMERSEIL RN -

BEWL - WEETEARKETRN®R
SEHHAAEREERR  AREKRK
REMTAZEERRBVI AR
W EBEIE ©



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default (i.e.
no default history); (ii) the debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a financial
asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that financial assets
that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 180 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower; or

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event; or

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Where receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence of significant increases
in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12m ECL at the current reporting
date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the financial statements when
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. A right to set-off must be available today
rather than being contingent on a future event and must
be exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in the
normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from projects works are recognised over time
during the course of construction by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction at the end of the
reporting period. Progress towards complete satisfaction
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation (i.e. contract costs
incurred for work performed to date) relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation (i.e. total estimated contract cost), that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not unconditional.
It is assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and time deposits that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating-units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating-units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair values less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of each reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the
lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the
lessee.

The Group determines the incremental borrowing rate on
the lease as the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term with a similar security
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate;
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless
the lease payments change is due to a change in a
floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount
rate is used); or

U a lease contract is modified and the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement
of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day and any initial direct
costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to
dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site
on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under
IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-
use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-
use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter
period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that
the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in
the statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 4 ‘Impairment of
tangible assets’.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurs and
are included in the line ‘Administrative expenses’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not
to separate non-lease components, and instead account
for any lease and associated non-lease components
as a single arrangement. The Group has not used this
practical expedient. For a contracts that contain a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product
or service to a customer.

Revenue from construction works is recognised over
time upon completion of work.

Revenue from services on installations of mechanical
and electrical systems is recognised at a point in
time upon the certification and acceptance of the
customers when the outcome of such work can be
reliably estimated.

Revenue from maintenance services is recognised
at a point in time when the services are provided
according to the terms of the agreements.

Revenue from sales of tools and materials is
recognised upon the delivery of goods at a point in
time.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably).

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the costs for which
they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered the services entitling them to the contributions.
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident
Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
plans where the Group’s obligations under the plans
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deduction of any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other periods and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the
Group and subsidiaries operate by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not be reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

4.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED

4.

EXEHBERE)

AT EAEEEREREEE KA
HERBEZHERZ ZELEREAM
5 AREELEERBENRES S
AREHEEEXHERE -

RHBHREERNHEABENHER
SME  AEERERHEHERTER
ER G ERNBE 12 EHRE - &
EREEENHEAGHEBENERE
RIFREEN G - ERAREENE
BHEEAGBE2HOHEENE
DEYHELAHREREZRFE -

T B B] &K 58 Bl 87T R A A% BDHIFR 1R
BERNMBARMGEEN WP RHE
FA—MERERRAEREBEAR
SERRFREEEEHANGHRAEL
ENBER  ARERBEEREE
QIR EEaF

BIEA MR AE R IR 1R 25 N FERR /B i X2
e - BRIFE S MR E M2 E RS
FERNERPEZNER - EULE
SUN o BVER AR AEFR TR IR 3 Bl E A
PHEHNGEHERNEETHER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The individual financial statements of each Group entity
are measured and presented in the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(its functional currency). The consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the statement of financial
position of the Company are presented in S$, which is
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements. The functional currency of the Company is
HK$.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the
transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are
included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations (including comparatives) are expressed in
S$ using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expense items (including
comparatives) are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate component of equity under the header of foreign
currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group’s management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The directors are of the opinion that there was no critical
judgement involved that have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial
Statement.

The following is the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Construction revenue is determined with reference to the
terms of the relevant contracts based on the progress
towards complete satisfaction measured by the input
method. Total contract costs which mainly comprise sub-
contracting charges and costs of materials are estimated
by the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors or
suppliers involved and the experience of the management.
Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction contract as the contract progresses, the
actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue
and costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and
this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

Variations in contract work and claims are included to the
extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its
receipt is considered probable.

Management reviews the construction contracts for
foreseeable losses whenever there is an indication that
the estimated contract revenue is lower than the estimated
total contract cost. The actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of each of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

The carrying amounts of contract assets and current
liabilities arising from construction contracts are disclosed
in Note 17 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S M R R

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets, using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables, other receivables (excluding prepayments)
and contract assets of the Group are disclosed in Note
15, Note 16 and Note 17 to the financial statements
respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M R RO

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable from (i) provision of services including
preparation and consultation on building design and
specifications, performance of building works (mainly
including radiation shielding works, M&E works and fitting-
out works) and assisting to obtain statutory approvals and
certifications for the building works (“Integrated design
and building services”) to external customers, (ii) provision
of maintenance services generally comprise conducting
examinations, replacement of parts and repair works (if
necessary) in relation to the radiation shielding works
and mechanical & electronical works, and provision of
other ancillary services generally include minor renovation
and installation works, dismantling and disposal of
used medical equipment, removal of construction waste
materials, and cleaning of the work sites upon completion
of building works, etc. (“Maintenance and other services”)
and (iii) sales of tools and materials (such as fabricated
radiation shielding products, signage boards, lead sheet
and lead glass) (“Sales of tools and materials”).

Information is reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM") of the Group, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. The accounting
policies are the same as Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 4. The CODM reviews revenue by
nature of services, i.e. “Integrated design and building
services”, “Maintenance and other services” and “Sales
of tools and materials”. No other analysis of the Group’s
results nor assets and liabilities is regularly provided to
the CODM for review and the CODM reviews the overall
results and financial performance of the Group as a whole.
Accordingly, the CODM has identified one operating
segment. Only entity-wide disclosures on services, major
customers and geographical information are presented in
accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
30 June 2020 is as follows:

Wk o EER(F

REBEBRE 2202056 A30B ItFE
MWD

2019
20194

S$
AN T

Revenue from: KEUTHEE K -

Integrated design and building RARET MRERT

services, recognised over i PRl O FERR

time 9,972,641
Maintenance and other HENREMARTS - REFEEER

services, recognised at a

point in time 377,751
Sales of tools and materials, TARMESHE - RIFHEZER

recognised at a point in time 52,900

10,403,292

All the contracts with customers are agreed at fixed price
and the expected duration of the contracts is one year or
less.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue

generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales for the reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WHERDHERE
(Continued)
Major customers FEEF
The revenue from customers individually contributed over REZE2020F6 A30B L FE - KB
10% of total revenue of the Group during the year ended ERE A EE W SRR B10%HNE
30 June 2020 are as follows: FHRERT

2020 2019
20204 20194

S$ S$
3 003 7T AT

Customer A BEPA 1,660,841
Customer B =FB 2,944,076
Customer C ®PFC 1,608,029
Customer D =FD 1,091,703
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * HE 8k 2 A R 25 HA REME AN R B W e 4R B AT
revenue of the Group for the reporting period. REBB10% °
Geographical information EER
The Group principally operates in Singapore, which is also AREEBXTERFINE (T AaEfi)
the place of domicile. Revenue derived from Singapore EETE - B E2020F6 H30R IEF
represents 98.6% (2019: 84.2%) of total revenue for E o WREBEATIRMEE R MRS AR ARE
the year ended 30 June 2020 based on the location of BRI - BB &R ERPTER (3962
products, services delivered and the Group’s property, RETINE) - R B F AN By Y s (b e
plant and equipment which are all located in Singapore. HREERI98.6% (20194 : 84.2%) ©

HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED | —2=S & F 1§ 153



154

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H IFATBFE

7.

OTHER INCOME

HlA

2020 2019

202045 20194

S$ S$

57 h03% 7T HANE T

Government grants (Note) B HE B (Kt aE) 19,627
Interest income FE U A 455,621
Others HAth 10,415
485,663

Note:

Government grants mainly include the Wage Credit Scheme, the
Productivity and Innovation Credit Scheme and the Workforce Training
Scheme, all of them are compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs. Government grants in 2020 mainly also
include COVID-19-related support by the Singapore government to help
companies tide through this period of economic uncertainty, such as the
Foreign Worker Levy (“FWL”") rebates and the Job Support Scheme (“JSS”)
totalling to S$187,650 (Note 16). Under the JSS, the government will co-
fund between 25% to 75% of the first S$4,600 of gross monthly wages paid
to each local employee in a ten-month period through cash subsidies.

While JSS and FWL rebates were recognised as grant income, FWL
waivers obtained of approximately S$42,000 were offset against related
FWL expenses in cost of services/sales.

All government grants are compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs.

OTHER GAINS (LOSSES)

Foreign exchange gain (loss), net SMNEU S (&8 ) F58
Gain arising on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Mt -

BRmBEEaEMFHATE - £ENHHEA
MERFEREHRERN  TEZSEBY
ABEEEHIHNBENHESINSTAEEN
BRI EFEREMN MAEELRKREBEK
AR o 20204 B9 BT HH Bh £ B IR B IE T 1K BT
AR ARERLAET BN RRmME LG
COVID-198) 18 » HImiMET ABB ([4MET
ABEREERMEE(TRE®MMTEDA
187,650 M T RVRT (HIsE16) © IRIBER
WAET R RABRTEABEBEBRRSH
HABEZNEGEEMESES AR TE H4,600
N TTH25%E75% ©

BRERBMHAIRMETIARMBRROERR
WA > MEBMSHIETIABRERLZD
42,000%7 b3 T B S AR TS #6948
BSMET ARERX -

ERNHBEREEEEMSKBRNEE
SR AN S BR AN & B if I AR RARRARCA -

Htuhzs (B518)

2019
20194

S$
AT

(58,137)

HEWE - BERRBELEN K

29,952

(28,185)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. PBRFANER

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging: MFAGEF AR A T S IEBER
2019

201945

S$

N T

Finance costs B8

— Interest on lease liabilities -HEREZHNE =

Depreciation of right-of-use assets:  {FFREEENTE :
- Recognised as cost of services/ - R B, HERKA
sales =

Depreciation of property, plantand 1% - E MR EITE -

equipment:
- Recognised as cost of services/ - ERARE,SHERA
sales 70,002
- Recognised as administrative - BRRITHAX
expenses 31,587
101,589
Annual audit fees paid to auditor of Xt F AR B L EAD B FEAZE
the Company b=gz3! 130,000
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) EEHM (A1) 398,550
Other staff costs: Hf 8 TRA
— Salaries and other benefits - FHe MEMmET 2,135,965
- Contributions to retirement benefit  — RRIB 52| 3
scheme 148,870
Total staff costs B IR 2,683,385
Cost of materials recognised as cost MR ARG, #4565k 2 2 #1# Bk 2%
of services/sales 1,425,501
Subcontractor costs recognised as R AR, HEKA 2 HEHE
cost of services/sales AR 2,583,739
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FifSHipAx
2019
2019%F
S$
¥ N3 T
Tax expense comprises: HERS B
Current tax: BVEARRIE -
- Singapore corporate income — F I PR ER
tax (“CIT") ([TEMRERD) 466,377
— Underprovision for Singapore - BAFEH MK EREH
CIT in prior years BETR -
- Deferred tax expense - BEBIEAX
(Note 22) (Btst22) 2,040
468,417

Singapore CIT is calculated at 17% (2019: 17%) of the
estimated assessable profit. Singapore incorporated
companies can also enjoy 75% tax exemption on the first
S$10,000 of chargeable income for Years of Assessment
2021 and 2020 and a further 50% tax exemption on
the next S$190,000 of chargeable income for Years of
Assessment 2021 and 2020 respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FAEHiBR (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAMEA EBER REMEEKE R
before taxation per the statements of profit or loss and FIRKIBRBATRFIE RO T ¢

other comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194

S$ S$
3 003 7T AN T

Profit before taxation B 15 A1 2 A 2,731,028
Tax at applicable tax rate of 17% 1Z@E AR K17 %t E K FIA 464,275
Tax effect of expenses not ARG E

deductible for tax purpose 1,987
Tax effect of income not taxable HBAEZRHKRANTIEZE

for tax purpose (77,186)
Effect of tax concessions and MIBERERHEDTIERENZE

partial tax exemptions (27,425)
Effect of tax rates of subsidiaries REMRZEEEEZHBARZ

operating in other jurisdiction MERFE 106,318

Underprovision of income tax BEFEMRSHERT R
in prior years -
Others HA, 448

Taxation for the year FRHIE 468,417
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ 11.

REMUNERATION

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and
chief-executive of the Company (including emoluments
for services as employee/directors of the Group prior
to becoming the directors of the Company) by entities
comprising the Group during the year ended 30 June 2020
are as follows:

Discretionary
Fees bonus

e KB
S$ S$
FMR MK T

Executive Directors (i) #{TEE()

Wu An Ming (i) (i)
Koh Lee Huat (iif) % i)

Ryan Ong Wei Liang (iv) TEE(iv)

Independent BYKHTES(v)
Non-Executive
Directors (v)

Cheung Kwok Yan REC

Wilfred
Siu Man Ho Simon YR
Pong Kam Keung 35k
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ 11.

REMUNERATION (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2019

Discretionary
Fees bonus

ik RfETEa
S$ S$
AR IR

Executive Directors (i) HTEE()

ESHMERESHM(Z

EEME(E)

HZE2019F6HA30H LLFE

Contributions
to retirement

Salaries and
allowances

e MR
S$
IR

benefit
scheme
RINER
srEIfER
S$
HA T

Total

b
S$
T

Koh Lee Huat TR = = 97,800 12,375 110,175

Ryan Ong Wei Liang (iv) THE() - - 72,000 12,375 84,375

Non-Executive Director (v) F#HTEZE(v)

Ang Kong Meng (vi) LS B (vi) 114,000 - - = 114,000

Independent Non-Executive B FHTEE(v)

Directors (v)

Cheung Kwok Yan Wilfred KRB 30,000 - - - 30,000

Siu Man Ho Simon YR 30,000 - - - 30,000

Pong Kam Keung BB 30,000 - - = 30,000
204,000 - 169,800 24,750 398,550

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above () EXFREITESMEAKE

were for their services in connection with the
management affairs of the Group.

(i) Mr. Wu An Ming was appointed as an executive
director, the chairman and the chief executive officer
with effect from 18 October 2019.

(iii) Mr. Koh Lee Huat has resigned as the chief executive
officer with effect from 18 October 2019.

AEEARKENFEHMEHOR
BE S -

(il AERETEZTENITES -
FTREBITBESE - B2019F 10

A18H AR -

(i) FRBEEECBTHTITHREH B

2019510 A18H AR -
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(iv) Mr. Ryan Ong Wei Liang has resigned as an
executive director with effect from 18 October 2019.

(v) The independent non-executive director’'s and non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

(vi) Mr. Ang Kong Meng has resigned as the chairman
with effect from 18 October 2019 and has retired
as the non-executive director with effect from 22
November 2019.

None of the directors has waived any remuneration in 2019
and 2020.

No other retirement benefits were paid to the above
directors in respect of their respective other services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Group.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the director of the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ 1. EEMERESHFM(Z
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Employees’ remuneration & 25

During the year, no remuneration was paid to any of the RER > AEEHBERENLEES
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or FALTIHER  (EAMAREES
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of RINARNEE & EE BB mE -
office.

The remuneration of the five individuals with the highest EAEENRAEZERRHALHR  —F
emoluments in the Group, one (2019: two) was director of (20194 : M) BAREEH E2020
the Company during the year ended 30 June 2020 whose FoHA3RILFEMES - EFHME
emolument is included in the disclosures above. The BEELFREEFR - AAMEB AL
emoluments of the remaining four (2019: three) individuals (2019%F : =R )M F M T :

were as follows:

2019
20194
S$
N3 T
Salaries and allowances ¥re ROERL 272,050
Discretionary bonus* BB IEAT 60,250
Contributions to retirement RIKERIFT B

benefit scheme 29,074
361,374

* The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the duties e EYBIEAL IR 2 E BB A TR AREE W

and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group and BEREFURAREFENRIEET -

the Group’s performance.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals hTEmReH AL (BRESR)(2EE
(including directors) were within the following bands: S)NEHEMEULNTESHER :

Number of employees

EEAY
2020 2019
20205 20194
Emolument band < & E
Nil to $$150,000 T 150,000%7 hi3k 7T 5
S$150,001 to S$200,000 150,001 %71 103 7T 2= 200,000%7 13 7T -
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. ERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KABIHEEANBEERERLEER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the MR AT &SRS

following data:

2020

20204

Profit attributable to the owners of N &G A FE(G % F

the Company (S$) (R a3k T) 2,262,611
Weighted average number of BT E @R INE T

ordinary shares in issue 800,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per ~ BREARKEERF 0.28 cents

share 0.28%
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based ERERBFDIRBRARHEES AR
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the HEE RN KRB ETRMD 2 MNEFE
Company and the weighted average number of shares in HETE -
issue.
Diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic REE20204F KX 2019F6 A30H (FF
earnings per share because the Group has no dilutive B BREEENETREARENE
securities that are convertible into shares during the years B TERARENEAIER AR 7D
ended 30 June 2020 and 2019. ZHEES o
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. V¥  BERRE

Computers Furniture
Plantand Leasehold and office Motor and
Machinery  properties equipment  vehicles fittings
KK B R
BEREH  BENR  BOREB RE #E
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
gL MIgT AR SIBT AiER
Cost: BA
At 1 July 2018 20185 7R 18 51,013 631,290 17,241 395,207 42287 1,237,038
Additions HE 9,322 - 8,293 147,760 - 165,375
Disposals ik - - - (152,112) - (152,112)
At 30 June 2019 1201956 A30H
Additions AE
Exchange realignment AR
At 30 June 2020 202056 308
Accumulated depreciation: ~ R3HTE :
At 1 July 2018 R201857A1H 45,071 150,029 66,814 279,641 30,546 572,101
Charge for the year ERRR 4,458 11,691 16,743 65,544 3153 101,589
Elimination on disposals R ERHH - - - (152,112) - (152,112)
At 30 June 2019 201956 A30H
Charge for the year EMRX
Exchange realignment ERHEE
At 30 June 2020 #2020%6 4307
Carrying value: REE:
At 30 June 2019 201956 A30H 10,806 469,570 41,976 197,782 8,589 728,723
At 30 June 2020 #2020%6 4307

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful
lives after taking into account the residual values:

EamE BEEREBRETINER
RAEBERABEREERATAIER
FHITE -

Plant and machinery TR 5 R HE A 5 years 54
Leasehold properties HEYE 54 years 544
Computers and office equipment ESN PSS YN 5 years 5%
Motor vehicles RE 5 years 54
Furniture and fittings R EE 5 years 5%
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A ZE20209F6 H30H IFATBFE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FRAEEE

AEEHEETEMEE  BEIE
EEBREIRES - ZSHEMEED
TS HAR A2 (20194 « 24F) ©

The Group leases several other assets including workshop
space and staff dormitories. The average lease term of
these other assets is 2 year (2019: 2 years).

164

Workshop Staff
space dormitories Total
THEEZH BEIER #Act
S$ S$ S$
AN T AN T AN T
Cost: KN -
At 30 June 2019 201996 H30H = = -

Adoption of IFRS 16

BRANBIRR B 5 i o 22 A

165 58,165 50,538 108,703
At 1 July 2019 R2019F7H1H 58,165 50,538 108,703
Additions =T 52,610 - 52,610
At 30 June 2020 720206 A30H
Accumulated depreciation: i E -
At 30 June 2019 R2019F6 A30H - - -
Adoption of IFRS 16 AN B PR B 1S S 2 A
51657 - - -
At 1 July 2019 M2019F7/1H = = =
Additions nE 55,839 37,902 93,741
At 30 June 2020 20206 A30H
Carrying value: AREIE -
At 30 June 2019 20196 A30H = = =
At 1 July 2019 R2019F7H1H 58,165 50,538 108,703

At 30 June 2020

7202046 A30H
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 14. ERAEEE(E)

The Group has no options to purchase any of its
leased assets at the end of the lease term. The Group’s
obligations are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased
assets for such leases.

As at 30 June 2020, certain leases of the Group contain
extension periods, for which the potential future cash
outflows of $$92,400 have not been included in the lease
liability as the Group is not reasonably certain that the
leases will be extended (or not terminated). If a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs
which affects this assessment and that is within the control
of the lessee, the above assessment will be reviewed
further.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, certain
leases for workshop space expired. The expired contracts
were replaced by new leases for identical underlying
assets. This resulted in additions to right-of-use assets of
S$$52,610 in this financial year.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in
Note 20.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 9)

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9)

Expense relating to short-term leases

At 30 June 2020, the Group is not committed to any short-
term leases.

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 amounting to
S$$94,800, comprising repayment of principal of $$93,586
and interest payment of S$1,214.

AEERHRAERB T EEEEREE
HEMBEEEE - AEBHNETTIMA
HHEAHZEHENTHEEENA
REIEYELR

R2020F6 A30H  AEEETHE
HELERE 24 BARAEET
IEEBEHERSER(ITER
1F) » #092,400 1 N3 TT B 7B 7E A 3R
ReRBITRFAHERR - WBE
EREHHBRBELEERELMTE
-Ma WHEABRANEHSEEARN - £
M AT E—PEH -

HZE2020F6 A30H I EREFEE
FIEEZ=HMWEED ER ° EE/ﬁﬁ
MEHNABHRB—HEEEMNHEER
R WBRERAEEERNATHRFE
#HN52,610H Ik T -

HEREMNIMOMNHIE2027 -

2020
20204

S$
303K T

EREEENE(HiZ9)

HERENE(HZ)
B HEE AN

R2020%F6 A30H » KEEIWEETL
mHEIFE -

HER200200FW B R T REA
94,8001t - EFBIFEEELRS
93,586 # M3 7T & A F 81,2145
T ©
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A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES

15. EZBKFIR

2020 2019
20204 20194

S$ S$
03K T CpIIES o

Trade receivables S IERGA

The Group grants credit terms to customers typically
for 30, 60 or 90 days from the invoice date for trade
receivables.

As at 1 July 2018, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to S$4,482,202.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide
the expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9. The
impairment methodology is set out in Note 4.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
assesses the impairment for its customers based on
different group of customers which share common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. Details of the credit risk assessment are
included in Note 29(b).

Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
(ECL). The expected credit losses on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
of the industry in which the debtors operate.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting

period.

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no
impairment loss was recognised for the trade receivables.
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3,399,887

AEEREZRUGFERETEFNE
BEHEEARZHEREE30X 60K
890K o

R2018F7A1H  BEFALHFTHE
S U FRIE B4,482, 202 hI T ©

AN SR B e P RS M0 70 DR TR BB B A R
SREAEIRARENAHEEEHE
BETDRE N M4 ©

ERAKEEERBRERZ —#0
ARERBETAEFHFGEEFH
RE - BEFEAGHRERERER - 1
EFERENIGRZ M AA R ERE
MBES - EERER G F B AT
29(b) °

BHRWFAZERBFEERESFN
EHENEERR(EHREEBR)MN
TR E - BHRUHRENEYEER
BRI E BB A BEIEREENA
R EBAB BB RO DT E
RBEHEREMES  HRAREEBA
MAZE EHRAKEMETENER
REBERRAETTHREE o

AR MR - A RS B
KBRS -

B ZE2020F X 2019F6 A30H I F
B SHEERE 5 E YR RIER
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15.

The table is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each
reporting period:

BESEWRIA(E

AT RREREHPRRBREZZAHZ
SN E 5 e WA 2 BRER AT

2019
20194
S$
¥ A3 T

Analysis of trade receivables: B ZEW AL 5T -
Within 30 days 30K 2,293,628
31 days to 60 days 31 RE60X 106,789
61 days to 90 days 61 RKE90K 393,679
91 days to 180 days 91X ZE180K 322,117
Over 180 days 181 KA E 283,674
3,399,887

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on the due date at the end of each
reporting period:

AT RREREDRREDNHA L5
B E 5 W IR 2 BREC AT

2019
20204

S$
AN T

Receivables that are past due but not E B EE R B (E A
impaired JEY K IE

Less than 30 days DR30K 305,350

31 days to 60 days 31REB0K 7,225

61 days to 90 days 61 REIOK 61,846

91 days to 180 days 91RE180K 131,967

181 days to 365 days 181K E365K 155,934
662,322

The Group did not charge interest or hold any collateral
over these balances.

The carrying values of trade receivables approximated
their fair values.

7N 5% [ B 8 ph 5% B A AR M B AT B,
HFFHEAEA R

B 5 RWHANREEREELAFER
% o
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A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. HMEWFIE  RERBANKIE

168

PREPAYMENTS

Deposits we

Prepayments T FRIE
Advances to staff BT
Grant receivables JE W B

H fth & Y kIR

Sundry receivables

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group is entitled
the grant under JSS and FWL amounting to S$278,550, of
which S$114,920 remain unpaid and recorded as grant
receivables as at 30 June 2020. In addition, the Group
recognised S$187,650 (Note 7) as grant income in profit or
loss during the year from the date the Group is significantly
impacted by COVID-19 pandemic which is following the
circuit-breaker measures in Singapore that took effect
from 7 April 2020 and recorded deferred grant income
of S$90,900 (Note 19) as at 30 June 2020, which will be
recognised as grant income in the next financial year.

Other receivables excluding prepayment are considered
to have low credit risk as they are not due for payment
at the end of the reporting period and there has been no
significant increase in the risk of default on the receivables
since initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of
impairment assessment for these receivables, the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses (ECL), and management has
assessed no loss allowance is required at the end of the
reporting period.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.
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2019
20194

S$
AT

103,505
42,493
2,878

2,777

151,653

HEC020F6 A30HIEFE - A& H
ERESERMAGTE RINET AR
& 1) BN 278,550 kT - B
114,920 M3 T AR 5 R 182020
F6H30BARABRUEE o 5N -
AEBRFANBAREEZCOVID-19
BREERTYEE A (RFINEAEEE
FMEFN 202054 A7 B £ %1% ) B fEI8 %
T33187,650%1 N3 7T (K137 ) A ED
WA - WR202046 A30 B RS IR
8 B I A.90,900F T A3 7T (B sE19)
HEN T BFEERE/BBBA -

B TR SR SN H A U BOR R 1 A
EEERR  AARHmERRZER
TBIWEEHEN - BEVSHERER
i, & W 5K TR B 32 40 R B I 4 R R OB
e Bt - 5% F R ESAE AR E
mmE - BREREDREN12EAE
HEEBEENSRtE  AEEED
AHAR IR E IR EAEEBRAE -
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (LIABILITIES)

17. SHNEE(AR)

2019

20194F

S$

HANE T

Contract assets — construction contracts & #HEE —EEAH 2,316,118

Retention receivables (Note) JEWRE R (KaF) 182,697

2,498,815

Contract liabilities — construction contracts S4B & —BEE4 (43,850)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERAZRMIEL 22

mE

Contract assets BHEE 2,498,815

Contract liabilities BHBE (43,850)

2,454,965

Note: The Group’s contract assets are the retention receivables to be
settled, based on the expiry of the defect liability period of the
relevant contracts or in accordance with the terms specified in the
relevant contracts, at the end of the reporting period. Retention
receivables withheld by customers of construction works are
released after the completion of warranty period of the relevant
contracts, which is usually 12 months from the completion date,
and are classified as current as they are expected to be received
within the Group’s normal operating cycle of approximately twelve
months.

Contract assets and contract liabilities arising from the
same contract are presented on a net basis.

As at 1 July 2018, contract assets and contract liabilities

amounted to S$1,030,282 and S$24,253 respectively.

Management concluded that the ECL for contract assets is
insignificant as at 30 June 2020.

Htit - ARENAHNEERNRS BREREE
e MRk TR HsRIERBEH
BEMBRREBNRKERS - BETRZ
EFHBENERKERSERBAONRE
HBFRETKBMEF12EA) AR
REERR - AN BRABEE  REZEKRER
EENARE—RZLEBR(H12EA)
EEI

R—aHEENEHNEERENERB
R EREERT -
R2018%F7H1H » AHEERAH
B &5 Bl A1,030,282 # 10 % 7T &
24,253 INF IT °

EBERA  N2020E6 A30AME
HNEENTEHEEBBMTRE -
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A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (Continued)

Contract assets represents the Group’s rights to
considerations from customers for the provision of
construction services, which arise when: (i) the Group
completed the relevant services under such contracts; and
(ii) the customers withhold certain amounts payable to the
Group as retention money to secure the due performance
of the contracts for a period of generally 12 months (defect
liability period) after completion of the relevant works.
Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
becomes unconditional and is invoiced to the customer.

Changes of contract assets were mainly due to: (1) the
amount of retention receivables in accordance with the
number of ongoing and completed contracts under the
defect liability period; and (2) in the size and number of
contract works that the relevant services were completed
but yet certified by representatives appointed by the
customers at the end of each reporting period.

Contract liabilities represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customers.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities in the beginning of the year was S$43,850 (2019:
S5$24,253).

All services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (Continued)

Management always estimates the loss allowance on
amounts due from customers at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default
experience and the future prospects of the construction
of medical equipment industry. None of the amounts due
from customers at the end of the reporting period is past
due. Management has assessed that the ECL for contract
assets is insignificant as at 30 June 2020 and 2019.

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no
impairment loss was recognised for the contract assets.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period in assessing the loss allowance for the contract
assets.

18. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR

Fixed deposit TEHIER

Cash and cash equivalents in the ReEMEEXANERE R
statement of cash flows ReEEY

As at 30 June 2020, the Group has a HK$ time deposit
amounting to S$20,909,561 (2019: S$Nil), with a maturity
of one month and carried interest rate of 0.73% per
annum.

17.

18.

BHREERE)(F)
ERE-HERAERE2HENEES

BREEHERIE S RIER EE
B veERBEHBRLEMGEE %
KRR A= o B E IR P )T
R EEHAREHE - %f_ﬂia%ﬂﬂé
20204 20196 A30HM A K EE
MNEHREEBSBEAITTENRX -

HZE2020F K 2019FE6 A30R IFE
B BMERTANEHEERRRER
18-

RHEENEENEIRRERERN
HEITERBABRKRN AR E H A

RITERERE

2019
20194

S$
¥t

22,464,228

22,464,228

MR2020F6 A30H » AEBEMETE
HATF 3% /20,909,561 %7 ik 7T (2019
FTFMET) BRA1ER - F
FZEE0.73% °
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19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. BEFRHMENRE

2019

20194

S$

¥ N3 T

Trade payables 2 SN IR 107,208

Trade accruals B 5 e B 93,057

200,265

Accrued operating expenses fEET B 200,896

Other payables: HAth fEATFRIA -

GST payable e & R AR H 118,819
Payroll and retirement benefit scheme JEN T & PR KRN 5T 2

payable i 229,772

Deferred grant income (Note 16) EER B A (HTiF16) -

Others H 16,305

565,792

766,057
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19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

20.

19. ESREMBENREE

In 2020 and 2019, the credit period on purchases from 20204 K 20194 » MIHEEF RSB
suppliers and subcontractors is between 14 and 90 days FETHEBZ EEHR14E90KRHR
or payable upon delivery and rendering of services. A AR AR A B B AT o

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables NTRARSREARBEEZAHZ
presented based on the invoice date at the end of each 5| E 5 R SRIERREC D AT

reporting period:

Within 90 days
91 days to 180 days

2019
20194

S$
¥t

105,994

91 RZE180K 1,214

107,208

LEASE LIABILITIES (THE COMPANY AS LESSEE) 20. HEEB(RQATMEAEEAN)

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year

After one year but within two years

2020
20204

S$
03 T

ENHEERE :
—%FR
—FREMFEA

Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months

(shown under current liabilities)

B 1218 A REIHRE N 2 /08
FIRRBEEET)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

(shown under non-current liabilities)

1218 A & 2 HE S 2 5R
GIRIERBEEERT)

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with AREBVEFREHAEAEEREENR
regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored PERER HERBBEXAEEUHK

within the Group’s treasury function.

BReBPPIESE o
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20. LEASE LIABILITIES (THE COMPANY AS LESSEE)
(Continued)

The above represents leases for certain warehouse and
staff dormitories of the Group. As at 30 June 2020, the
weighted average incremental borrowing rate was 4.65%

per annum.

The Group’s lease does not contain variable lease
payments and accordingly no expense relating to variable
lease payments is included in the measurement of lease

liabilities.

Lease obligations are denominated in Singapore dollar.

As at 30 June 2020, management considers that
the carrying amount of non-current lease liabilities

approximates its fair value.

21. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated statement
of cash flows from financing activities.

20.

21.

HESE(XRQXRAEREEAN)(F

NWEAEAEEETRERBIBEN
FAE - N20205FE6 308 »© A NEF
IS B REEF465% °

$$E%ﬁ%ﬁ$@ BE L% €
Ik FﬂEEEMJE¢Tm
SHRASEHENTAANER

HE AR IR TTEHE -

R2020F6 A30H @ BEIRERAIER
PHEEBENERAEREIAFTEMRES -

METHEECAEHER

TRAEASEREZDELCBESE
5 RRREMIERSEH - &
é‘éiﬁ%iZEﬁﬁ%iﬁémgiﬁi
RESRERGERERERDES
@ﬁﬁ/ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁmbgzgjﬁ °

30 June  Adoption 1July Financing New lease 30 June

2019 of IFRS 16 2019 cash flows® liability 2020

20195  HHHE 2019% g 2020%

6H30F EAI%16% 7H1B  REeRE0 HHAEEE 67308

S$ S$ S$ S$ S$

WKL BT MET FIRT WK i

Lease liabilities (Note 20) ~ REAE(Hi220) - 108,703 108,703 (56,093) 52,610 67,727

(i) The cash flows pertains to principal repayments of lease liabilities in (i) #HEeHReREXRPHEAENASEER
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Eabnr=1: K
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

22, RIEFIEEE

2019

20194F

S$

ETANE T

As at 1 July M7A1A 25,270
Charged to profit or loss for the period HIA R BNk (M 10)

(Note 10) 2,040

As at 30 June K6 HA30H 27,310

The deferred tax liabilities resulted from temporary taxable
differences arising from accelerated depreciation in
relation to capital allowance claims on qualified assets in
accordance with prevailing tax law in Singapore.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

Movement of the authorised and issued share capital of
the Company are as follows:

Equivalent to

2020
20205
No. of shares HK$
Ro#A B
Authorised: AT -
At beginning of yearand ~ REFRER
end of year
Issued and fully paid BEIRER
ordinary shares: Tk
At beginning of yearand ~ REFRERK
end of year

MRS E

REBFIEIRTBOE - BEHRIRAE
DREERGEREEZERNERHR
BERNRATEELNETRERNE
B o

23. K&

Equivalent to
S$  No. of shares S$
L& Mg TEE

1,500,000,000 15,000,000 =

800,000,000 8,000,000 1,335,760
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H IFATBFE

24. SHARE PREMIUM

The amounts of the Group’s share premium and the
movements therein during the years ended 30 June 2020
and 2019 are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Share premium represents the excess of consideration for
the shares issued over the aggregate par value.

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Before the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 July 2019

The Group as lessee

24,

25.

IR 3 s E
REBEH E2020%F 2 2019%F6 A30H

R BEE RO EESER LB
RELHRBHERZ5] -

Bt s EEe HTROREBLAR
BRI -
RERERE

JR201957 A1 B R4 B PR BF 38 3 o5 2
BISE165% AT

EEEERAEA

2019
2019%F
S$
TN TT
Minimum lease payments paid during the year RATEERLEEHEBTFA

under operating leases in respect of: ERERERNK
— Staff dormitories -BIBES 74,400
— Workshop space - B E =M 56,400
130,800

At 30 June 2019, the Group had outstanding commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as
follows:

Within 1 year
After one year but within two years

—27s
— SR

MR2019%F6 A30H @ KEE Z Al
I EHAOR T BB EBZA 2K
EfEENT -

2019
20194F

S$
AN T

132,992
14,923

147,915
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26. RIKEREFE

The Group participates in defined contribution plans
organised by the relevant local government authorities
in Hong Kong and Singapore for its Hong Kong and
Singapore employees respectively, whereby the Group is
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
certain percentage of the relevant portion of the payroll
of these employees to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The Group has no obligation for the payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the Hong
Kong and Singapore employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

The total costs charged to profit or loss, amounting to
5$201,625 (2019: S$169,515) for the year ended 30
June 2020, represent contributions paid to the retirement
benefits schemes by the Group.

As at 30 June 2020, contributions of S$29,355 (2019:
S$24,952) were due respectively but had not been paid
to retirement benefit scheme. The amounts were paid
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

RNEE 2B E B KO AR 77
FF 93 Bl A E & R N E S ER
TEFEMH /TJ\u‘|'§|J Bt - $'§./,jﬁi+
AT —T AP LLME L2
BARRZEREMNBZRTEXN
‘Al - R EatE AN AEEY
BEER/ETE LA INKE B X HRIK
T REAMRIKIERER

HE2020F6 A30HIEFE - KB
I 2 #8 R A A201,625 T h 3 JT
(20194F : 169,515 N r) » BIK
SERRKRENEFEIEAOHERK -

20206 A30H -+ 29,355% ik T
(2019%F : 24,9525 h3 7T ) UK E
BIHRE M R AR AREFIF EI AT o 3%
EREEREREINT -
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A ZE20209F6 H30H IFATBFE

27.

28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

27.

BT RS
TEEEASHMH

FREERTEEEEAMBKE ZF

management during the year were as follows: BT -

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
S$ S$
103 T N3 T
Short term benefits 7= HATE A 654,760
Post-employment benefits BERL 2R A 43,648
Total compensation e Gk 698,408

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 28. EXEHE

The Group manages its capital to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding of cash flows from operating
activities.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital and reserves. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The management of the Group review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the management
consider the cost of capital and the associated risk with
each class of items in the context of capital structure,
and takes appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s
capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 29.

MANAGEMENT

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables

Other receivables and deposits*®

Bank balances and cash

Total

*

Prepayments are excluded.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables**
Lease liabilities

Total

BEBEKATER
EREE

B 5 RUKIA

H b FE MR IR Mg &
RITEBRNMRS

st
* TRERNRIE
ZRBRA R
SHEE
58RI HR

> GST payable and deferred grant income are excluded.

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and lease liabilities.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

ERITARSRERER

2019
20194

S$
¥ AN T

3,399,887
109,160
22,464,228

25,973,275

647,239

647,239

> TEERNERREE/MBIA -

$EI\I THIAEBEESHEKK

HapEW IR - % -~ RITHH%
&iﬁi B 5 REMBERFKBENARLA
EaE ZEeRTAENFEREH
W&ﬁ% ﬁ%iéﬂlﬂﬁ%mﬂ

%m%ﬂ s (F1 2= @ B %H

) ;ff /}Ib@)é%ﬂ R

ﬁWWHﬂﬁﬁiﬂ 2 ) 2R E@
EeERMERZERAR - BREE
B ECEE B o
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. It is the
Group’s policy to raise borrowings at fixed-rate or
variable-rate according to business needs and as
to minimise the fair value and cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate risk exposure and will consider interest
rate hedging should the need arise. No sensitivity
of interest rate risk is prepared as the Group has
no material variable interest bearing financial
instruments.

The Group has certain bank and cash balance, fixed
deposit, other receivables, prepayments, and trade
and other payables denominated in HK$, S$ and US
Dollar (“US$") other than the functional currency of
the respective group companies, which exposes the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages the risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rate.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Market risk management (Continued)

Currency risk management (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at

the end of each reporting period is as below:

29.

ERTARSRARERE(E

TREREEEERBK(E)

(a) TEEBEE(F)

2019
20194
S$
T O3 T
Monetary assets: BE¥EE:
— denominated in HK$ — B TTEHE 12,938,035
— denominated in US$ —AETEHE 1,370,959
Monetary liabilities: EWaE:
— denominated in HK$ — B TTEE 87,201
— denominated in S$ — AR N TEHE -

Sensitivity analysis

If the HK$ strengthens/weakens by 10% against
the functional currency of the respective group
companies, the Group’s profit for the year ended 30
June 2020 would increase/decrease by S$444 (2019:

S$1,285,083).

If the US$ strengthens/weakens by 10% against
the functional currency of the respective group
companies, the Group’s profit for the year ended
30 June 2020 would increase/decrease by S$1,142

(2019: S$137,096).

If the S$ strengthens/weakens by 10% against
the functional currency of the respective group
companies, the Group’s profit for the year ended
30 June 2020 would decrease/increase by S$18,500

(2019: S$Nil).

WETHEEERARNNEEE
FE B2 E10% - BIAEEEE
2020F6 A30B It FEREHNE
#hn, 8 A 444 % Nk T (2019
& 11,285,083 113 IT) °

WETHEEBRAAININESR
WHE,BE10%  BIAEE
HZE2019F6 A30H IEFEW %
e, w A 1,142 i T
(20194 : 137,096 i TT) °

W I T R S EE R RIMIEE
EMAEZE10%  BIAEER
HZ2019%F6 A30H IEFE M
F& 10,8 4> 18,5008 M1 7T
(20194 : TEINFIT) ©
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. At the end of reporting
period, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has
delegated its finance team to develop and maintain
the Group’s credit risk grading to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default.
The finance team uses publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own historical repayment
records to rate its major customers and debtors.
The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A ZE20209F6 H30H I BFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b) Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category

Description

il

Performing The counterparty has a low risk of
default and does not have any
past-due amounts.

RSEFEHEREIE - W EEME
HgRE o

B4

Doubtful Amount is > 90 days past due
or there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

& EE 6 BB IBO0 B 3k B VA FERR A

X EERBRBRZILN -

A] &ERY

In default Amount is > 180 days past due or
there is evidence indicating the
asset is credit-impaired.

CHARNBE180A AR ERTEE
EEERE -

il
2%

Write-off There is evidence indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery.

BRBEXAEGAMTHRABRER
o ARBERARCHAERS -

2. SRTANCHEAREE(Z

TREREEEERBR(E)

(b) FEEBREE(E)

AEBBRKNEERRFTRIER
BIEATER

Basis for recognising expected
credit losses (ECL)
BABEMEEER(AHEEER)
e kich: O

12-month ECL

128 AfRHEEER

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

EHEHEESE - TREERE

Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

E2HEREEEE - FERE

Amount is written off

TR
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 2. eRTANCHEAREE(Z
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies tREREEEERBE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Credit risk management (Continued) (b)) GEEBEEE)
The tables below detail the credit quality of the TRFAMAEESHEERHA
Group’s financial assets and other items, as well as HEMEEBZUANZEERR
maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating TRESMEREERR
grades:
Internal Gross Net
credit 12-month or carrying Loss  carrying
rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount
128 A&
ABEETR FEHEEFE AREAE
S$
) 107G 10 1 v 1§ 1
2020
2020%F
Trade receivables 15 (a) Lifetime ECL 1,693,123 - 1,693,123
(Simplified approach)
B 5 RENRIE 15 (a) FHRBEEEE
(B1LAR%)
Other receivables* 16 Performing 12-month ECL 302,057 - 302,057
Hofth e YR 16 BH 12 REHEERE
Contract assets 17 Performing Lifetime ECL 2,425,645 - 2,425,645
(Simplified approach)
BREE 17 EBH 2 HEMEEEE
(B{LF%)
2019
20194
Trade receivables 15 (a) Lifetime ECL 3,399,887 - 3,399,887
(Simplified approach)
BHRYRIE 15 (a) FHEHEEBE
(%)
Other receivables* 16 Performing 12-month ECL 109,160 - 109,160
Hfth e YR I 16 B 12 AEHEERR
Contract assets 17 Performing Lifetime ECL 2,498,815 - 2,498,815
(Simplified approach)
ARNEE 17 EBH P HRBEEEE
(Bt 7%)
& Prepayments are excluded. * TRIETEMFRIA -
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A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK 20, eRTANCRARERE(Z)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has (a) WMEZFRUFEBEBRAHNEEMS *
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the REBEDHABER M BRELENSE
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the RAZ BT ERERBEE
expected credit losses on these items by using a provision BEEENEERE ALEFEBE
matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience BREEEETZEEENESRE
based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as %Eﬂé IRIR R IR S BAAR L A
appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of BAEEBEBERETER - WIE
future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk A E R AR E ATARR R R R
profile of these assets is presented based on their past due ERREMEE - At - ZEEE
status in terms of the provision matrix. Notes 15 and 17 M{EE RS RE R R IL
include further details on the loss allowance for these assets BMEAARR 2T o fiFE15R178EE
respectively. ZERESENEEREE

1% o

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by AEBZMEMNEE HSNEER

geographical location is mainly in Singapore, which ¥ BEPEF MK - 72020

accounted for 100% (2019: 68%) of the total financial FOoHAVBMGFHMESREER

assets as at 30 June 2020. EEHI100% (20194F : 68%) °

Approximately 91% (2019: 90%) of total outstanding M2020F 6 H30H » #91%

trade receivables at 30 June 2020 were due from (2019%F : 0% ) KREBE FE

top five customers which exposed the Group to WHRIBBERBEAAEF + ©F
concentration of credit risk. SEEEREESTRR -

Other than concentration of credit risk, bank deposits BRIFERAXR(20194F : I %)

and balances placed in five (2019: four) banks in B IR 2 SRITHSRIT IR AR

which the counterparties are financially sound and on ﬁ%b&&fﬂﬁlﬁj{%}fﬂ’]fé%ﬁéﬂ&
trade receivables from top five customers, the Group PFIEFEEETRERI  AEH

has no other significant concentration of credit risk on B E RN R WGk IE I E b B8 K

its loans and receivables, with exposure spread over FEEHTRR  BERRSHZE

a number of counterparties. ZHREFH o

Further details of credit risk on trade receivables, BEEE ZENGE - B EUR

other receivables and deposits, and contract assets BREEARE ’Jé{EE’MZ%

are disclosed in Notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively. RO — P EFEIE D BIFEMTFE5

16175 -
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILAT I FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulties in meeting its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. In the management of the liquidity
risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

All financial liabilities of the Group as at 30 June
2020 and 30 June 2019 are non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand or due within one year, except
for the lease liabilities as disclosed in Note 20.

All financial assets of the Group as at 30 June 2020
and 30 June 2019 are non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand or due within one year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
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Financial year ended 30 June 2020
A Z20209F6 H30H ILATFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2. SRTANCHEAREE(Z

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value
on recurring basis.

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing model based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial
statements approximate to their fair values due
to relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments, except for lease liabilities as disclosed

A AR M ERAA T EE B
ZARBSRAERSREEY
AFAE -

TRMEENREBMBEZIAFETD
BHEMRARERENMTRIELR
EERAETE

AEEERERS  RPBHHREK
NIZE RN 2 BB E R
TRBERAEEEAFEM
o DARRFERM T AMNEH
FH - RSB E (R E20%H
BOBRON

in Note 20.
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. FAREE

R2020F 2019496 A30H It FE#
mYARAME -

There are no contingent liabilities for the years ended 30
June 2020 and 2019.
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. MEBRAAFE

RAFEEMBHRERAY - ARERT
SIF B~ R B AR

As at the date of this consolidated financial statements,
the Company has direct equity interest in the following
subsidiaries:

Equity interest attributable

to the Company as at
KAFRNT AL RE

Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully 30 June 30 June  Principal

operation and date of paid capital 2019 2020 activities

incorporation
HWELRER AMAL/ EELER BRIRARER 20195 2020F FEEH

M ER 3 B 5 6A30A 6A30H
Directly held:
BERE:
Philosophy Global Limited ~ BVI, 29 May 2018 S5$4,600,136 100% Investment holding.
Philosophy Global Limited ~RBRZES 4,600,136 100% REER -

20185A29A Mg
Falcon Max Limited BVI, 8 July 2019 US$1 - Investment holding.
Falcon Max Limited EBATHS (EZ - REHR -
2019%7H8H
Indirectly held:
FEFE -
Hwa Koon Engineering Singapore, 5 April 1994 $$1,000,000 100% Provision of integrated
Pte. Ltd design and building
services.
Hwa Koon Engineering g - 1,000,000 100% Rt R RBER o
Pte. Ltd. 199454 A5H AT

Falcon Max (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong, 27 August 2019 HK$1 - Not yet started business.
Falcon Max (HK) Limited &% * 2019687278 187 - NS

BRARAEENMENBRARER
BRAR - WEHRM6A30H BHE
BFEEHER -

The subsidiaries now comprising the Group is limited
liability company and has adopted 30 June as their
financial year end date.

RBEHR - BENE QR EITER

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 32.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current asset
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amount due from subsidiaries

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amount due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities,
representing net assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Share premium
Translation reserve
Accumulated losses

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

BENRERE
FRBEE
KT B R AR E

RBEE
Hth fE MR
BRI
= VNGRS
RITEBRNRS

wmak

hRBEE
H A 5O0R
Y= NCIE/ O]

REBEEFE

HEERABREE i
AERE

R

BX KRB
[N
Eeavipifst
BE R
RETEE

ARBEE ARG ER

AT B RO 3R R Ak 4

A TR RS B 2 B S R AR
mF -

2019
20194

S$
¥ AN T

17

34,164
12,221,058
735,965

12,991,187

187,201

187,201

12,803,986

12,804,003

1,335,760
15,352,340

(3,884,097)

12,804,003
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32.

33.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

32.

ERBRMBERR KRR ARG (E

ARREEREET

Share  Translation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R RE BERE RitB#E Azt
S$ S$ S$ S$
F IR T FIK T FTIK T i) 1b o
At 30 June 2019 201956 A30AH 15,352,340 - (3,884,097) 11,468,243
Total comprehensive loss FAZEEFEHELE
for the year:
Loss for the year FREE - - (928,535) (928,535)
Other comprehensive FREMBE RS
income for the year - 488,400 - 488,421
At 30 June 2020 202056 A30AH
EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING 33. REHMERSBE

PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020 has caused
disruptions to many industries globally. Despite the
challenges, governments and internal organisations
have implemented a series of measures to contain the
pandemic. The Singapore government has implemented
several phases of circuit breaker and post-circuit breaker
recovery measures in order to contain the pandemic,
and the Group’s existing core business was significantly
impacted by these measures, especially due to the delays
in progress of its construction projects since early April
2020.
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33. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING 33. HEHEEE(E)

PERIOD (Continued)

The Group however does not expect to incur hefty
penalties for contract delays in the form of liquidated
damages as the Group is mostly involved in medical
and healthcare sector projects, where its customers are
understanding in the circumstances of an increase project
completion period due to the pandemic, and most of the
Group’s contracts with customers include clauses for
delay due to unforeseen events would results in no liability
for such events. The Group has also received certain
grants and assistance from the Singapore government
to help offset some of its fixed costs during this time,
primarily relating to its employee wages and foreign
worker levies. The Group has insofar adhered to all the
requirements set out by the Singapore government,
particularly relating to its business operations and in
dealing with its foreign workers affected by stay-home
notices. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020 has included the financial effects as
a result of the COVID-19 outbreak up to 30 June 2020.

As of the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, most of the Group’s engineering
projects have resumed, albeit at a reduced capacity as
compared to pre-pandemic times as some of its foreign
workers are still in isolation and due to additional safe
distancing measures that will be applied at project sites to
prevent a resurgence of the pandemic.

The Group will closely monitor the development of
the pandemic and assess its impact on its operations
continuously. Given the unpredictability associated with
the COVID-19 outbreak and any further contingency
measures that may be put in place by the relevant
governments and corporate entities, the actual financial
impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s 2021
consolidated financial statements could be significantly
different from estimates depending on how the situation
evolves. Notwithstanding this and as disclosed in Note
29(c), the Group will have sufficient liquidity to enable the
Company to continue as a going concern for at least the
next 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

A AEBEBEF TS HNELEE
A EERERKENS BTN -
AAEAEETENRETEERBEITER
B EPFEMAMNZEEMERIEE T
REERMER  mMAAEFRERRS
MAHDENBEESHNEELERS
HMERZESHNRENEREK
Ko ZEBMES THMERFNE
TFHEBG IR E) - LAE BN B It i /Y
—EEEXAN  EEXEEFPRETITE
MONES TR - NEEE EFH MK
BRENABEENXR  FREEBEE
E¥BELUNERBHTEZERM
FENIINE T ARENK - BLE2020F
6ABEFEEMNGAVEHRRER
FEE £ 202046 A30HCOVID-1948
BIERE -

BEAGAMBHRRMEZR - TF
BOAZHRTIRABEERE  BE
R IERALLBEN BT - TIER
ETHBIADERRRMAE - S H
BRI T R 2 EEREE - LA
FEIHBBISER - U EZEEBRER

%o

AEEBERYERTENER W
BEFTGHEHEENTE - 108
COVID-1948 2% 48 B8 /9“1~ 1] T8 8 1% DA
M AB BT R 1b 2 & S A] REFRER A9 (E
I E b E 248 i - COVID-19/& 3 &
EE2021FHRE PV BERERANERITE
FE g A THRBEBINE
B8 - BE WL - B EE29(c) T
B ASEBAERANREM - FA
AEEREHRRELEE T @A

& 425 47 A
FELE o

HKE HOLDINGS LIMITED | —Z=-ZFFF3f

191



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ANEEBRT AEMBEE 2 XBUREE
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the REBBHMEN#HEEEC TIRFEHREK @ &
published financial statements, is set out as below: HEAR -

2019 2018 2017 2016
20174

S$ S$
KT T R AT

RESULTS E4
Revenue [ 10,403,292 13,928,620 14,937,418 9,793,083
Cost of services/sales TR,/ HERA (6,705,927)  (8,162,246)  (8,432,129)  (6,187,490)
Gross profit E 3,697,365 5,766,374 6,505,289 3,605,593
Other income HiplgA 485,663 70,585 48,468 50,639
Other gains (losses) Hio s (B1E) (28,185) 518,999 132,825 -
Administrative expenses THAX (1,423,815)  (1,294,339) (618,196) (634,716)
Finance costs BEKA - = - (225)
Listing expenses ARiilchd - (3,391,288) = =
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 2,731,028 1,670,331 6,068,386 3,021,291
Income tax expense FEREY (468.417)  (792275)  (917.764)  (340,367)
Profit for the year FEERA 2,262,611 878,056 5,150,622 2,680,924
Other comprehensive (expense) E 2 & (B3 ) Uz -

income:
Items that may be reclassified E#FAE#H 7 EE

subsequently to profit or loss:  1E#HIEH -
Exchange differences on BMEBINETEH)

translation of foreign ERER

operations ) - - - -
Fair value changes on HEESREEN

available-for-sale financial NFEES

assets, net of tax MBRTIR - = 223,323 (95,812)
Reclassified upon disposal of  HEM{EHESR

available-for-sale financial BERENHE

assets - - (127,511) -
Total comprehensive income FEZHEKFEHE

for the year 2,262,611 878,056 5,246,434 2,585,112
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ~ EERAMH
Non-current assets FERBEE 728,723 664,937 746,796 685,523
Current assets MEBEE 28,514,583 27,044,271 9,759,183 6,853,825
Total assets EEAE 29,243,306 27,709,208 10,505,979 7,539,348
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 27,310 25,270 25,652 16,628
Current liabilities mEEE 1,272,015 2,002,568 2,365,232 2,654,059
Total liabilities SEAE 1,299,325 2,027,838 2,390,884 2,670,687
Total equity ERaE 27,943,981 25,681,370 8,115,095 4,868,661
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